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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the members of AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited (the Bank),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the profit and loss
account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash
flow statement for the year then ended, along with unaudited certified returns received from the
branches except for 20 branches which have been audited by us and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the
information required by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of
the Bank's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of the loss, the other comprehensive income, the
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
In Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Bank in accordance with the international Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the

Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditors' report therean.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurancercunclusion thereon.
1
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have perfoarmed, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financlal Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the requirements of
Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting

from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal contrel relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
=1
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¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our apinion: -

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Bank as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017) and the returns referred above from the branches have been found adequate for the
purpose of our audit; :

b) the statement of financial position, the profit or loss account, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement (together with the notes thereon
have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns:

) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were in
accordance with the objects and powers of the Bank and the transactions of the Bank which have
come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was

deducted by the Bank and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that
Ordinance.

2. We confirm that for the purpose of our audit we have covered more than sixty per cent of the total
Islamic financing and related assets of the Bank.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Shaikh Ahmed
Salman,

STSSW

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Date: 19 March 2021
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

I

2020 2019
Note rewweeww-e— (Rupees in '000) -
ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 15,773,612 26,319,937
Balances with other banks 6 10,177,095 2,850,550
Due from financial institutions T 2,748,221 14,588,633
Investments 8 57,117,232 24,194,885
Islamic financing and related zssets - net 9 90,279,044 75,443,712
Fixed assets 10 4,396,282 4,868,271
Intangible assets 11 1,329,654 1,477,211
Deferred tax assets 12 2,640,784 2,839,139
Other assets 13 8,351,698 9,389,888
192,813,622 161,982,226
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 14 3,696,482 3,223,721
Due to financial institutions 15 5,722,336 4278132
Deposits and other accounts 16 159,363,727 129,654,288
Subordinated debt 17 3,174,945 3,460,661
Deferred tax liabilities - -
Other liabilities 18 7,826,680 8,633,860
179,784,170 149,250,662
NET ASSETS 13,029,452 12,731,564
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital - net 19 14,500,490 14,500,480
Reserves 332,231 179,384
Surplus on revaluation of assets 20 723,509 1,185,540
Accumulated losses (2,526,778) (3,133,850)
1 3,029,453= 12,731,564
A
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 21

The annexed notes 1 to 48 and annexures | and Il form an integral part of these fipdncial statements.

Chief Executive Offifar

Chief Financial Officer

Chairman

Dlrectoz

r (==h

Director
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2018
Note (Rupses in '000) =——-m-

Profit/ return =arned on Islamic financing and related essets,

investments and placements 22 14,052,494 12,823,326
Return on deposits and other dues expensed 23 {(7,676,157) (7,912,215)
Net spread earned 8,376,337 5,011,111
Other income _
Fee and commission income 24 689,091 748,419
Dividend income 18,595 31,473
Foreign exchange income 966,312 734,666
Gain / (loss) on securities 25 174,469 (95,088)
Other income 26 67,282 10,641
Tctal other Income 1,885,749 1,430,203
Total income 8,262,086 6,441,314
Other expenses
Operating expenses 27 (5,393,641) (6.214,658)
Workers' Welfare Fund (31,398) (165)
Other charges 28 (90,697) (28,489)
Total other expenses (5,515,734) (5,243,303)
Profit before provisions 2,748,352 1,198,011
Provisions and write offs - net 29 (1,207,948) (1,180,441)
Extra ordinary / unusual items - -
Profit befare taxation 1,538,404 7,570
Taxation 30 (774,171) (199,256)
Profit / (loss) after taxation 764,233 (191,686)

- Rupee —-esue

Profit / (loss) per share - basic / diluted 31 0.56 (0.14)

i

The annexed notes 1 t¢ 48 and annexures | and Il form an integral part of t ncial slatements,

/ \ !ng - DLC;\—L..MQ{J il {Qﬁ\

Chief Executive Offlcer Chief Financial Office Chairman Directo Director /




Page 3

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019
- (Rupees in '000) —-
Profit/ (loss) after taxation for the year 764,233 (191,888)
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account in subsequent periods:
Movement in surplus on revaluation of investments - net of tax (524,285) 824,794
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account in subsequent periods:
Remeasurement loss on defined bensfit obligations - net of tax {10,003) (8,084)
Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of non-banking assets - net of tax 61,300 (82,171)
51,297 (100,258)
Total comprehensive income 291,245 632,853
N

e

Chief Executive Officer  Chief Financial Officer Chalrman Directo Directdr )
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ALEARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Surplus / (deficit) on
revaluation of
Cepital  Discount Non
;:‘ﬁ support  on issue of m Investments  banking A““;':"M Total
fund shares assats
{Rupees in '000)
Bal as at 31 D ber 2018 13,730,628 - (B32.768) 158,348 20,288 333488 (2,914,898) 10,705,083
Loes afer taxation for the year - - - - - - (191,686) (191,688)
Other comprehensive income - not of tax - - - . 624,794 (82,171) (8,084) 824,539
Transter 1o stalulory resarva - - s 20,036 - - (20,038) .
Received during the year - 1,393,828 - . - . - 1,393,628
Balance as at 31 December 2019 13,73p.628 1,283,828 (632,786) 179,384 £45,179 241,318 (3,134.804) 12 531{584
Profit aflar laxation for the year - - - - - - 764,233 764,233
Other comprehansive loas - net of tax - - - (524,285) 67,943 (10,003) (488,245)
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - 152,847 - - (152,847) -
Transfer of surplus on of aszet on
disposal of nen banking asset . - - - . (6,843) 6,643 =

@slanca a8 t 31 December 2020 DINSE sy TS BT SO SEst. O TIET
| N

The annexad notes 1 o 48 and annexures | and |l form an integral part of these financial statements.

* The stahut I’B!‘BMIGWSE"‘I profit sat aside as required uncar the Prudsntial Regulation for Bank as

. 300, S g W S I N
Chief Exetutive Dfficer Chiaf Financisl Officar  Direct Director ;




Page 5 ‘

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019
Note  -— (Rupees in '000) —
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxalion 1,538,404 7,570
Less. Dividend income (18,695) (31,473)
1,519,809 (23,803)
Adjustments:
Depreciation on fixed assets 27 182,445 178,420
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 27 635,140 622,249
Amortization 27 177,565 198,777
Depreciation - non banking assets 27 32,086 25,667
Provision and write-offs - net 29 1,196,322 1,190,350
Gain on szle of fixed assets - net 26 {(26,776) (7,331)
Gain on sale of non-banking asset 28 (9,300) -
Finance charges on lease liability against right-of-use assets 23 206,147 224,114
Unrealized loss on revaluation of securities classified as held for trading 25 (9,782) (4,155)
Workers' Welfare Fund 31,398 155 |

2425868 _ 2427.337
3945678 2,403,434

{(Increasse) / Decrease in operating asssts

Due from financial institutions 11,860,412 || (14,588,633)
Held-for-trading securities - net {500,053) 81,694
Iglamic financing and related assets - net (16,071,153) (1,518,328)
Others assets (excluding advance taxation) 939,257 231,776

(3,793,163) (15,803,580)
[ncrease/ (Decrease) in operating liabilities

Bills payable 472,781 (473,756)
Due to financial institutions 1,444,204 442 110
Depoesits and other accounts 29,709,439 || 29,739,277
Other liabilities (455,389) (607,378)
31,171,015 29,100,252
Income tax paid (198,571) (180.,112)
Net cash flows from operating activities 31,128,959 15,539,004
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net investments in available-for-sale securities (32,663,388) {85,127)
Net investments in held-to-maturity securities (512,849){| (1,540,881)
Dividends received 18,585 33,756
Investment in fixed assets (538,297)|| (1,487,103)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assels 183,340 11,372
Net cash used in from investing activities (33,512,609) (3,057,993)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Tier Il mudaraba sukuk - first issue (285,718) (285,716)
Payment of lease liability egainsi right-of-use asssts (548,414) (208,396)
Receipt of Capital Support Fund - 1,393,628 |
Net cash flows (used in) / from financing activities (834,130) 899,516
{Decrease) / Increase In cash and cash equivalents (3,219,780) 13,381,617
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 32 29,170,487 15,788,970

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 25950707 _ 29.170.487
L0

The annexed nctes 1 to 48 and annexures | and Il form an integral p

Jay o e

hief Executive DFficer Chief Financial

Chairman
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1.  STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 AlBareka Bank (Pakistan) Limited (the Bank) was incorporaled in Pakistan on 20 December 2004 as a public limited company. The
Bank was granted an Islamic Banking License BL(/)-01(07), issued by the Banking Policy and Regulations Departmen! of the State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP) on 18 January 2007. Subsequently, the Bank was alsa granted approval for commencement of business &s a
scheduled bank with effect from 13 February 2007. Upon merger of the Pakistan branches of AlBaraka Islamic Bank B.S.C. (c) with
and inlo the Bank, fresh license no. BL())-01(2011) was issued by SBP on 12 March 2011, effective from close of business on 29
Oclober 2010. The main objective of the Bank Is to carry on Islamic banking business in Pakistan In accordance and In conformity
with Shariah.

The Bank is & subsidiary of AlBaraka Islamic Bank B.S.C. (c) {parent bank} incorporated end domiciled in Bahrain and a8 member of
AlBaraka Banking Group.

1.2 Duning the year 2016, the shareholders of the Bank in their extra ordinary general meeting held on 22 August 2016 have approved the
merger of the Bank with Burj Bank Limited under a "Scheme of Amalgamation” (the Scheme). Further, State Bank of Pakistan,
through its letter no. BPRD (R&P-02)/2016/24373 daled 14 October 2018, has also approved the scheme of emalgamation and
granted sanction order for the amalgamation of Ex Burj Bank Limited with and into the Bank. As of the effective date of amalgamation,
the entire undertaking of Ex Burj Bank Limited including all the properties, assels and liabilities and all the rights and ohligations shall,
withoul any further acl, action or deed and notwithstanding the terms of any conlracl or other documentl or any rule of law, stands
amalgamated with and vest in the Bank and as a consequence, Ex Burj Bank Limited stands amalgamated with and into the Bank.

The Bank's registered office is localed at 162, Bangalore Town, Main Sharah-e-Falsal, Karachi. The Bank has 188 branches including
8 sub-branches (31 December 2019: 192 branches including 8 sub-branches) in Pakistan.

1.3 Based on the financial stataments of the Bank for the yaar ended 31 Decambar 2019, VIS credit rating company limited has
maintained the long-term rating at 'A+' and short-term rating at 'A1", Pakistan Credit Reting Agency Limited (PACRA) has maintained
the Bank's long-term rating at 'A' and short lerm rating at 'A1".

1.4  As at 31 December 2020. the Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) and Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) stood at Rs.11.97 billion and
12.9% respectively.

2,  BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial slatements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the SBP vide
BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 25 January 2018.

The Bank provides Islamic financing mainly through shariah compliant financial products as explained in Note 4.7.1 except for
Murabaha transactions (which are accountad for under the Islamic Financial Accounting Standerd - 1), the purchases and sales
arising under these arrangements are not reflected in these financial statements as such but are restricted to the amounl of facility
actually uliized and the appropriate portion of rental / profit thereon, Income, if any received, which does not comply with the
principles of Shariah is recognized as charity payable.

2.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

2.1.1 These financial stalements have been prepared In accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
The accounting and reporting slandards comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are notified
under the Companies Act, 2017;

Provisions of and direclives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1862 and the Companies Acl, 2017; and

Directives issued by tha State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by the
SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS or IFAS the requirements of the Banking Companies Qrdinance, 1862, the
Companies Acl. 2017 and the seid directives, shall prevail.

N
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Page 7 ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

The SBP vide BSD Circular Letter No. 10 dated 26 August 2002 has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standard
39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement" (IAS 39) and International Accounting Standard 40, "Investment Property"
(IAS 40) for banking companies till further Instructions. Further, according to the notification of SECP dated 28 April 2008, the IFRS -
7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures" has not been made applicable for banks. Accordingly, the requiraments of these standards

have not been considered in the preparation of these financlal statements. However, investments have been classified and valued in
accordance with the requirements of various circulars issued by the SBP.

IFRS B replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised
guidance on the classification and measurement of financial instruments, a new expected credit loss model for ca leulating impairment

The SBP vide its BPRD Circular No, 04 dated 25 February 2015 has clarified that the reporting requirements of IFAS-3 for Islamic
Banking Institutions (IBls) relating to annual, half yearly and quarterly financial statements would be notified by SBP through issuance
of specific instructions and uniform disclosure formats in consultation with |Bls. These repcrting requirements have not been ratified
to date. Accordingly, the disclosures requirements under IFAS 3 have not been considered in these financial statements.

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective In the current
year.

The Bank has adopted the following standards and amendment to IFRSs which became effactive for the current year:
Standard, Interpretations or amendments
- IFRS 3 - Definition of a business (Amendments)

- 1AS 171AS 8 - Definition of Material (Amendments)

- International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) revised Conceptual Framework
- IFRS 16 - Rent concessions on leased assets on account of Covid-18

- IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts

The adoption of the above standards, interpretations or amendment to accounling standards did not have any effect on Bank's
financial statements.

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective,

The following IFRS as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereta will be effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2021:

Effective date (annual periods

Standard, interpretation or amendment beginning on or after)

- IFRS 16 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 (Amendments) 01 January 2021

- IFRS 8 - Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement 01 January 2021

- IFRS 3 - Revised Conceptual Framework (Amendments) 01 January 2022

- IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipments: proceeds before intended use 01 January 2022

- IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts: cost of fulfilling a contract 01 January 2022

- IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current ot Nen-current (Amendments) 01 January 2023

PR
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The abova amendments are nol likely to have an Impact on Bank's financial slatements except for IFRS @ Financial Instruments. In
addition to above Stencards, there are ceriain new and amended standards, interpratations and amendments that are mandatary for
accounting periods taginning on or after 01 January 2021 but are considered not to be relevant to the Bank's operations and
therstore, are not detailed In these financial statements.

The Bank has complied with the requiremant of BPRD Circular Letter No. 15 of 2020 regarding quarterly parallel run of IFRS 8 from

July 01, 2020, The Bank has calculeted the impact of adoptian of IFRS © on lhe financial stalement of the Bank on the date of initial

application, which will be finalized post issuance of IFRS 9 guidelines from SBP. The Bank awaits further instructions and guidelines
from SBP for epplicability of same aspect of IFRS 8.

Furthar, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability
in Pakestan,

Effective date (annual periods
Standards beginning on or after)
- IFRS 1 - First time adoption of IFRSs 01 Janyary 2004
-IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts 01 January 2023

GCritical accounting estimatas and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformily with epproved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use
of certamn critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Bank's accounting policlas. The eslimates / judgments and associated assumptions used In the preparation of the financial
statements are based on historical experience and other feclors, including expectations of fulure evenls that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances

The estimates / judgments and associated assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision (o the acoounting eslimates are
recognized in the pericd in which the estimate is ravised, if the revision affects only that perled, or In the period of revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The key areas of estimates and judgments in relation to these financial
statements sre as follows:

a) Provislon against non-performing Islamle
The Bank revisws lis financing portiolic lo assess amount of non-parforming Islamic financing and determine provisicn
required there against on a quarterly basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the past dues,
delinguency in the account, financial position of lhe borrower, value of collateral held and requirements of Prudential
Regulations are censidered except where relaxation has been allowed by SBP.

The amount of general provision against consumer, small and medium enterprises and islamic financing is determinad In
accordance with the relevant Prudentlal Ragulations and SBP directives.

b) Impairment of available for sals Investments

The Bank considers that avallable for sale equily invesiments are impaired when there has been & significant or prolonged
decline |n the fair value below its cost except for investments where relaxation has been ailowed by SBP. This determination
of what Is aignificant or prolonged requires judgement, In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there s evidence of
delerioration in the financial heaith of the investee, industry and sector performance.

c) Income taxes

In making the estimates for currant and deferred taxes, Ihe management looks al the income lax law and the decisions of
appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

d) Operating fixed assets, depreciation and amortization

In making estimates of the depraciation / amorlization methed, the management uses method which reflscts the pattern in
which economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Bank. The method applied is reviswad at each financial year
end and if there is a changs in the expected patlern of consumption of the future sconomic benefits embodied in the assats,
the method would be chenged to reflect tha changa in pattern.

e) Emplayees’ benefit plans

The liabiitles for employees' bensfits are determined using actuarial valualicns. The acluarial valuations involve assumplions
about discount rales, expected rates of return on assets and future selary incresses as disclosed in note 35.3. Dua to the
long term nature of these plans, such estimales are suhgoc};:signiﬂcam uncertainty.
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1) Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with Indefinite useful life

Impairmant tasting involves a number of judgmental areas which ere subject to inherent significant uncertainty, including the
preparation of cash flow forecasts for periods that are beyond the normal requirements of management reporting and the
assessmenl of the discount rale eppropriate 1o the business. The detailed assumptions underlying impairment testing of
goodwill and intangible assels with indefinite useful life are given in note 11.5 to these financial statements,

g) Revaluation of non-banking assets

Non-banking assets acquired in selisfaction of claims are revalued by independent professicnally qualified valuers with
sufficient regularity to ensure that their net carrying value does not differ materially from their fair value.

h} lease term of contracts wilh renewal options and discount rate

The Bank determings the lease term as the non-cancellable lerm of the lease, together with any periods cavered by an
option to extend the lease If it is reasonably cerlain (o be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it 13 reasonably certain not to be exerclsed, The Bank also considers the incremental borrowing rate based on
certain internal and external factors.

The Bank has the option, under some of its lsases ta leese Ihe asset for additional term based on mutual agreement with the
lessor. The Bank applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option (o renew. That is, it
considers all relevant factors thal create an econemic incentive for it lo exarclse the renewal. After the commancement date,
the Bank raassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability ta exercise (or not to exerciss) the cplion (o renew (e.g., & change in business stratagy).

i) Contingencles

The assessment of contingencies inherently involves the axercise of significant judgement as the outcome of future events
cannol be predicted with cerainily, The Bank raviews conlingencies al each reparting dete and adjust it to reflect the current
bast astimate if required.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historicel cost cenvention except for available for sale investments, nan-
banking assets and commitments in respeci of foreign exchange forward contracts which have been measured at fair value in
accordance wilh requirements of 8BP. In addition, obligation In respect of staff retirement benefits ara camied at present value as
acluarial velusticn.

Items inciuded in the financlal statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environmeant In which the Bank
operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Bank's functional and presentation currenzy.

SUMMARY OF SiGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

The significant accounting policies adapted in the praparstion of these financial statements are set out baiow. Thess policles have
been cansistently applied to all years presented.

Leases
Right-of-use assets

At the Inceplion of the contract, the Bank essasses whelher a contract s, or contain, a lease. The Bank applies a single recognition
anc measurement approach for all leases, excapt for short term leases and leases of low-value assets. At the commencemant daia
of the lease, the right-of-use asset is initially measured at the present value of lease payment plus initial direct cost (If any).
Subsequently, RoU assels are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and any Impaiment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurament of lease liabliiies. RoU assets are depraciated on a siraight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated usefu! |ife and
the lease term

Lease liabllity against right-of-use

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognises lease liability measured at the present value of the consideration (lease
peyments) to be made over the |ease term and is adjusted for lease prepayments. Leese payments Include fixed lease payments less
any Incentive receivables, variable lease peyment dependent upon index or rate, amount expected to be paid under residual value
gueranieed if any. The lsase peyments ere discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, unlass it is nol readily
determinable, in which case the lessee may use the incremental rate of borrowing, After tha commencement date, the carrying
amount of lease liabillty is inoreased 1o refiect the accretion of intereet and reduced for the lease payments made. In eddition, the
carrying amount of lease liabllities are remeasured if there is a modification, change in lease term, change in lease paymants or
change in assessment to purchase the underlying “23'
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Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Bank applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of property and equipment (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Business combination and goodwill

Business combination are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. The cost of acquisition is measured as the fair value of
assels given, equity instruments Issued and the liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of acquisition. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, if any. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured Initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the consideration transferred over lhe fair
value of the dentifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in profit and loss account.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and balances with treasury banks, balances with other banks in current and depasit
accounts and investment with short term maturity of three months or less from date of acquisition (IAS 7).

Due to / from Financial Institutions

Bai Muajjal

In bai muajjal transactions, the Bank sells sukuk on credit to other Financial Institutions. The credit price is agreed at the time of sale
and such proceeds are received at the end of credit period.

Musharaka

In Musharaka, the Bank invests in the shariah compliant business pools of the financial Institutions at the agreed profit and loss
sharing ratio.

Musharaka from State Bank of Pakistan under Isiamic Export Refinance Scheme (IERS)

Under IERS, the Bank accepts funds from the SBP under shirkat-ul-aqd to constitute a pool for investment in export refinance

portfolio of the Bank under the guidelines issued by the SBP. The profit of the pool is shared as per the agreed weightages between
the partners.

Investments
Investmentis are classified as follows:
(a) Held for trading

These are securities, which are either acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in market prices, prafit rate

movements or are securities included in a portfolio in which a patiern of short-term profit taking exists. Such securities are
normally sold within 90 days of the purchase date.

(b) Held to maturity

These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Bank has the positive
intent and ability to hold till maturity.

(c) Available for sale

These are investments, that do not fall under the 'held for trading' or ‘held to maturity' categories.

Regular way contracts

All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within tha time frame established by regulations or market convenlion are
recognised at the trade date. Trade dale is the date on which the Bank commits to purchase or sell the investment.

2
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Initial recognition and measurement
investments other than those calegorised as held for trading are initially recogrised at fair value which includes transaction costs

associated with the investmenls. Investments classified as held for trading are inilially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensead in the prafit and loss account.

Subsequent measurement
{a) Hold for trading

These are measured al subsequent reporting dates at fair value. Gains and losses on remeasurement are included in the
profit and loss for the year.

(b) Held to maturity

These are measured at amortised cost using the effective profit rate (EPR) method, less any impairment loss recognised to
reflact imecoverable amount. The emortisation and impairment ara included in profit and loss for the yeer.

{c) Avaliable for sala
In accordance with the requirements of tha SBP, quoted securities and Governmant securities other than those clessified es
'held to maturity’, are subsequenlly re-measurad 10 market value. Surplus / deficit arising on reveluation of guoted securitles

classified as 'available for sale’, is taken to a separate account shown in the statement of financial position as a component
of equity and included in other comprehensive income for the year.

Unquoled equity securilies are valusd st the lower of cost and break-up value, Breek-up velue of equity securities is
calculated with reference to the nat assets of the inveslee company as per the latest avallable financlal slataments. in cases
where Ihe break up value of such shares is less than tha cost, the difference of the cost and braak up value is provided for
accordingly by charging to the profit and loss account.

Impalrment
Pravision for diminution In the vaiuves of securities classified as available for sale and hald to maturity {(sxcept sukuk certificates) is

charged to profit and loss account. Provisian for diminution in velue of sukuk cerlificates is made as per the requiremants of the
Prudential Regulations issued by the Stale Bank of Pakistan.

Cosf of equity investments is determined on weighled average basis.

Islamic financing and related assets

Brief nature of Islamlc financing arrangements

Following is a brief nature of the financing arrangements entered into by the Bank.

Murabaha

Under murabaha financing, funds disbursed for purchase of goods ere recorded as ‘sdvance against murabaha finance'. On

culmination of murabaha i.e. sale of goods to customers, murabaha financing are recorded at the deferred sale price net of deferred
profit. Geods purchased but remaining unsold at the statement of financial position date are recorded as inventories.

ljara Finanging

In jjara financing. the Bank provides the assets on periodic rentsis for specific tenor to customers

Istasna

in istasna financing, the Bank places an order to purchass some specific goods / commadities from its customers to be delivered to

the Bani within an agreed time. The goods are then solc by the customer on behelf of the Bank and the amount hence financad
alongwith profit is paid back tc bank.

Tijarah

In tijarah financing, the Bank purchases specific goods / commoditiss on cash basis from Its customers for onward sale and on
subsequent szale, the financed amount is paid back by Ihe customer
=
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Diminishing Musharaka

In diminishing musharaka based financing, the Bank enters into musharaka based on Shirkat-ul-Mulk for financing and agreed share

of fixed assets (example: house, land, plant, machinery or vehicle) with its customers and enters into period profit payment
agreement for the utilization of the Bank's musharaka share by the customer,

Salam

Salam Is a sale transaction where the sellsr undertakes to supply some specific goods to the buyer at a future date against an
advance price fully paid on spot.

Running Musharaka

Running musharaka is a shirkul-aqd based financing facility offered to the customers where the Bank participates in operating
actlvities of the customer and share profit and loss as per the actual performance of their business,

-

Accounting policies of Islamic financing

Islamic financing and related assets (advance, inventories etc.) are stated net of specific and general provisions against non-
performing Islamic financing, if any, which are charged to the profit and loss account.

Provisions against non-performing Islamie financing and related assets

Specific provision against nan-performing islamic financing Is determined in accordance with the Prudential Regulations and other

directives issued by the SBP. The Bank maintains general reserve (provision) (unless specific exemption is available from SBP) in
accordance with the applicable requirements of Prudential Regulations for consumer financs.

ljarah Assets

ljarah financing booked is accounted for as per the requirements of IFAS 2, whereby assets leased out under ijarah are depreciated

over the term of ijarah and the related rental income is recognised in the profit and loss account on an accrual basis after the delivery
of asset.

ljarah financing booked before 01 January 2009 is accounted for as a finance lease whereby assels under ijarah arrangements are
presented as a receivable at an amount equal to net investment in ijarah. Uneared income i.e. excass of aggregate rentals over the

cost of the asset is recorded at the inception of the jarah and is amortised over the term of the ijarah so as to produce a constant rate
of retumn on net investment in ijarah.

Islamic financing and related assets are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Inventories

Goods purchased but remaining unsold at the statement of financial position date are recorded as inventories. The Bank values its
inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories represents the actual purchase price paid by the
customer as an agent on behalf of the Bank from the funds disbursed for the purpose of culmination of murabaha,

The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost necessary to make
the sale.

Fixed Assets
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, other than land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any). Lend is stated at cost.

Depreciation is charged using the straight-line method in accordance with the rates specified in note 10.2 to these financial
stalements and after taking into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at sach statement of financial position date. Depreciation on additions is charged from the
month the assets are available for use while no depreciation is charged in the month in which the assels are disposed off.

Gains / losses on sale of fixed assets are credited / charged to the profit and loss account and disclosed in other Income.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets' camrying amount and recognised as a separate asset as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future banefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred.

o%a
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4,72 Capital work In progress

4.8

4.8.1

4.9

4.10

an

4.12

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected with specific assets
incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific
assals as and whan assets become available for use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets having e finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulsted amortisation and accumulated Impairment iosses, if
any. Intangible assets are amortised fram the month, when these assels are available for use, using the straight line method,
whereby the cosl of the intangible asset is amortised on the basis of the estimated useful life over which economic benefits are
expected 1o flow Lo the Bank. The residual value, useful life and amortisation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriala, at
each statement of financial position dale Amertizalion rates are specified in note 11.1 to these financial statements.

Intangible assefs with indefinite useful lives are not emortized bul tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
gengrating unit lavel. The assessment of indefinile life is reviewed annually to detarmine whether the indefinite life continues lo be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on 2 prospective basis.

Impairmant

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each reporting date for Impairment whenaver events ar changes In circumstances
indicale thet the camying amounts of the essels may nol be recoverable. If such indicalion exists, and where the carmying value
exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amount. Tha resulting impeirment loss is
faken 1o the profit and loss ascount.

Non-Banking Assets

The non-banking assels scquired in selisfaction of claims are camied al revalued amounts less acocumulated depreciation, These
assels are revalued by professionally qualified valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that their net carrying value dees not differ
materially from their fair valus. A surplus arising on ravaluation of property is cradited to the "Surplus on ravaluation of assets’ account

and any deficit arising on revalualion is taken to profit and loss account directly. Legal fees, transfer cost and direct cost of aoquiring
title 1o property is charged to profit and loss account and not capltalised.

Depreciation is dstermined with reference to the value assigned to such assets on revaluation and depraciation charge for the year is
taxen to the profit and loss account.

Deposits

Deposils are genarated on the basis of twe modes i.e. Qard and Mudaraba. Deposils taken on Qard basis ere classified as 'Current
Accounts' and Deposits generated on Mudaraba basis are classifiad as 'Savings Account’ and 'Fixad Deposit Accounts'.

No prefit or loss is passed on to current eccount depositors. However, the funds of current accounts are treated as equity for the
purpose of profit calculation and only any profit eamed / loss incurred on these funds are aliocated to the equity of the Bank. Profits
realized in pool are distributed In pra-agreed profit sharing ratio. Rab-ul-Maal share is distributed among depositors according to
waightages assigned at the inceplion of profit calculalion period.

Mudarib (the Bank) can distribute its share of profit to Rab-ui-Maal In line with Sharlah guidelines issued by SBP.

Sub-ordinated Loans

A subordinated loan is initially recorded at the amount of proceeds received and subsequently carried at amortised cost using ERP
mathod, Profit accrued on subordinated lozns Is charged to the profit and loss account.

Revenue Recagnition

- Profit on murabaha transactions is recognised on accrual bagis. Profit an Murabaha transactions for the period from the date
of disbursement to the date of culmination of murabehe is recognized immediately upon the latler dale.

- Rental income on ljarah financing booked is recognised on accrual basis.

G~
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- * Profit on diminishing musharaka, running musharaka, mudaraba and service ijarah are recognized on accrual basis.

- Profit on Running Musharakah financing Is booked on an acerual basis and is adjusted upon declaration of profit by
Mugharakah partners.

- Profit on tijarah and istasna is recognized on acorual basis commencing from the time of sale of goods till the realization of
sale proceeds by the Bank.

- Profit on bai muajjal transactions are recognized on accrual basis.
- Commission on letters of credit, acceptances and letters of guarantee is recognised when earned.
- Dividend Income is recognised when the Bank's right to receive the dividend is established.

- Profit from investment in sukuk is recognised on accrual basis. Premium and discount on purchase of sukuk are being
amortized through profit and loss account over the remaining maturity.

- Gains / losses on disposal of fixed assets, fjarah assets and musharaka assets are taken to profit and loss 'account in the
period In which they arise.

- Rentals from non-banking assets are recognised when sarned.
- Gains / losses on sale of investments is included in profit and loss account.

- Income earned from avenues that are not Shariah compliant is not racognised in the profit and lass account. This income is
claeslfied as charity payeble in accordance with the recommendation of the Shariah Advisor of the Bank,

- Realization of profit earlier suspended in compliance with the Prudential Regulations issued by SBP is credited to profit and
loss account on receipt basis.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Expense is recognised in profit and loss account except o the extent when
it relates to items recognised directly in equity.

(a) Current

The charge for current taxation is based on expected taxable income for the year al the current rate of lransaction. The Bank
asssssed its taxation income under Section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

(b) Deferred

Deferred lax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary differences between the amounts atiributed
to assels and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes. In addition, the Bank also records
deferred tax asset on available tax losses. Deferred tax s calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted at the statement of financial position date,

A deferred tax assel is recognised only to the extent that

it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be ulilised.

The carrying amount of deferred lax asset is raviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced o the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The Bank also recognises a defarred tax asset / liability on the deficit / surplus on revaluation of assets which is adjusted against the
related surplus / deficit in accordance with the requirements of the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 12, 'Income Taxes'.

Staff Retirement Benefits

(a) Defined benefit plan

The benefits under the gratulty scheme are payable on
retirement at the age of 60 or earlier cessation of service, in lump sum. The benefit is equal to one month's last drawn basic salary for

each completed year of service, subject to a minimum of three years of service. The scheme is regulated under its trust deed and
rules of the fund and is administrated by the trustees nominated under its trust deed

g
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(b} Defined contribution plan

The Bank also operates a recognised conltributory provident fund for all permanent employees. Equel monthly contributions are
made, both by the Bank and the employees, to the fund at a rate of 10 percent of basic salary.

4.16 Provisions, Contingent Aseate And Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a prezent lsgal or constructive obligation arising as a resull of past events and it is
probatle that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the amount of lhe obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each slatement of financial position date and are adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.

Cenlingent asseis are nct recegnised unless inflow of economic benefits is virtually certain.

Conlingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed unless the probability of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote.

4,18 Provision For Guarantae Claims And Other Off-Balance Sheet Obligations

The Bank, In the ordinary course of business, issues lelters of credit, acceplances, guaraniees, bid bonds, performance bonds eic.
Ths commission against such contracts is recognized in the profit and loss aceount under "fee and commission income" on receipt
basis. The Bank's liability under such contracts is measured at the best estimale of the amount expacted to settle any financial
obligation arising under such contracts.

417 Foreign Currency Transactlons

Foraign currency transactions are Iranslated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on lhe date of lransaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are transiated into Pak rupees al the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date.
Exchange gains or losses are included in the profit and loss account of the current period.

418 Commitments

Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracls are translated at forward rates applicable to their respective
maturities, Contingant liabllities / commitmants for letters of cradit and latters of guarantee denominated In foreign currencies are
translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates ruling on the reporting date.

4.19 Acceptances

Acceptances represenling undertakings by the Bank to pay bills of exchange drawn on cuslomers are recognized as liabilities of the
Bark at the dala of acceptance. Praviously, acceptances were only recognized as off-balance shest obligations and disclosed under
conlingent liabilities.

4.20 Flnancial Instruments

(a) Financlal assets and financial liabllities

Financial assels and financiel liabilities are nitially recognized at the time when the Bank becomes a parly to the contractual
provisicns of the instrument. These include regular way purchases or sales of financial assels that requires dalivery of assats within
the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. Financial assels are de-recognized when the
contractual right to future cash flows from the asset expires or is transferred along with the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset, Financial liabilities are de-recognized when obligation specified In the contract Is discharged, cancelled or axpired. Any gain or
loss an de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is recognized in tha profit and loss account of the current pariod.

b} Off-setting

Financia! assats and financial llabilittes are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there |5 a legally
enforceable right {o set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to setfle on a net basis, or to reglise the assel and settla
the liability simultzansously.

4.21 Share capltal and reserves

Ordinary shares ara classified as equity and are recorded &l their face value. Incremental costs directly sttributable 1o the issue of
new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceads. Discount an lesue of shares and capital support
received are shown in equity &s & seperale reserve.

The approprietion to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which these ere approved by the Board of
diractors.
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Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank (nat is angaged either in providing products or sarvices (business ssgment),
or In providing product or services within a parlicular aconomic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risk and
rewards that are different from those of clher segments.

(a) Business segments

The business segments within the bank have bean categorised In to the following classifications of business segments in
accordance with the requirements specifiad by SBP

- Corporate banking
Itincludes corporata sukuks, project finance, export finance, trade finance, guarantees and mobilization of daposits.

- Commercial and Small & Medium Enterprise (SME) banking
Itincludes project finance, export finance, trade finance, guarantess and mobilization of deposits.

- Retail and Consumer banking
Itincludes retail landing and deposits and branch banking services. It also Includes consumer auto and houeling financing.

- Tradlng and sales
It includes treasury operations in respsct of capital market, money market and other forex related activiles.

- Payment and settlement
it includas centralized functions operating Independent of aforementioned segments.

(b) Geographical segments
Currently, the operaticns of the Bank are carried out in Pakistan only.
Earnings Per Share

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings par share (EPS) and basic and diluled |oss per share for its shareholders, Basic EPS /
loss per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS / (ass par share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributabile to the ordinary shareholders &nd the weighted average number of ordinary shares outslanding for the effects of ali dilutive
potential ordinary shares, if any

Paol Management
The Bank aperates general and speclfic poals for depositors and other fund providers.
Under the general deposits paol, the Bank accapts funds on Mudaraba basis from depositors (Rab-ul-Maal) where the Bank acts as

Manager (Mudarib) enc invests the funds in the Shariah Compliant moces of Islamic financings and related asssts, investments and
placements.

Specific pocls are operated for:
(a) Funds raceived from Stale Bank of Pakistan for under the Islamic Export Refinance Scheme under the Musharaka mode.
(b) Funds acquired fram Islamic Financial Institutions for liquidity management under either Musharaka or Wakala medes.

{¢) Funcs accepted on Mudaraba basis from high net-worth/special deposit customers who demand higher rates of retum on
their investments.

The profit of each deposit pool is calculated cn all the remunerative assets by utilizing the funds from the pool after deduction of
axpenses directly incurred in earning the income of such post, if any. No provisions against any non perfarming assets of tha pool s
passed on to the pool. The profit of the pool is shared among tha members of the pool on pre-defined mechanism based on the
waightages announced before the profit caiculation period.

Tha depasits and funds under the above mentioned pools are provided to diversified sectors and avenues of the aconomy / buginaas
and are also invested in Government of Pakistan backed ijarah sukuk and other sovereign securities. Musharaka investments from
State Bank of Pakistan under Islamic Export Reﬂnar.‘l\oe are channelled towards the export gector of the aconomy.
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CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS

In hand
Local currency
Foreign currencies

With State Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current account
Foreign currency current account
Foreign currency deposit account

With National Bank of Pakistan in
Locel currency current account
Local currency deposit account

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

Note

5.1
51
51

2020 2019

——-= (Rupees in '000) »=-
3,278,211 2,578,761
1,672,873 870,986
4,851,084 3,249,727
8,064,209 20,574,168
7,452 4,411
1,360,659 1,161,413
8,412,320 21,730,092
1,610,200 1,330,210
8 8
1,610,208 1,330,218
15,773,612 26,318,037

These include local and foreign currency amount required to be maintained by the Bank with SBP. These accounts

are non-remunerative in naturs.

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

In Pakistan
In current account
In deposit account

Qutside Pakistan
In current account
In deposit account

Note

6.1

6.1

2020

2019

«-«== (Rupees in '000) ——-

57,106 18,499
695,286 83,583
762,391 83,082

5,829,654 1,623,098
3,596,150 1,144,369
9,424,704 2,767,468
10,177,096 2,850,650

The expected return on remunerative deposits ranges from 0.08% to 6.6% (31 December 2019: 1.6% to 8.97%) per

annum.

DUE FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Call money lendings

Bal muajjal receivable
- from scheduled banks

Particulars of due from financial institution

In local currency
In foreign currency

7.2

2020 2019
-~ (Rupees In '000) ----
. 1,703,324
2748221 12895300
2,748,221 14,588 833
2,748,221 12,885,309
- 1,703,324
2.743!221 14,698,633

The return on bai muajjal ranges from 6.5% 10 7.4% (31 December 2019; 12.5% to 13.5%) per annum. These will

mature by February 202'1_. '
-4
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INVESTMENTS
s 2020 _ 2018
a4 Provisionfor Suplus/ Carrying Com/  PrOvRIN " cumhe/  Canying
i diminution  [deficit) value s diminuth {deficit) valua
Nole (Rupses In '000)
Inyestments by type
Held-for-trading securlties
Shares 8.2 14,582 - (9,667) 5438 50,811 - (19,018; 31,502
Federal Government securitias 82 BA6872 - 320 535,982 . - L ¥
Available-for-sale securities i
Federal Government secuslties B2LB4.1 | 47,584,778 | - 424,280 | 47,579,058 || 14,059,230 . 1,378,642 | 15437.872
Shares 84.2584.3 BET,8T1 (621,217T)) 184,697 631,051 1,117,200 | (584,074) 57,629 610,958
Non Guvermment dabt secunties 82 1,322,108 (111,458) 10,686 1,221,538 1,458,805 (111,455) 1,243 1,348,583
Foreign securities 22 - 27,668 112,786 13.’%! 2847344 |
(632,672) ©47,523 61,945,430 19,2586, (675,529) 14541 20,044 787
Held-to-malurily securities
Federal Government securitics B2&B41 4,831,375 - 4,621,375 4,110,526 - 4,118,528
Total investments 57|111d13 i“aﬂl m,zsz Il'?l'i'l?én 435312 14351 04 B85
2020 2018
c;nl ‘.d Provision for  Surplus/  Carrying .mcw“".'“ f '"M"'h" Surplus/  Carrying
et diminution  (deficit) value cost dinsintion [deficlt) vitlus
Note (Rusg In '000)
by seg
Federal Government Securitiea: _ ki
Ijarah sukulk 25,974,588 (170,384)| 28,804,234 2,055,933 - X
Bal muajjal 4631375 - - 4,631,378 4,118,528 - 4,118,628
Other sukuk - 22710316 00 - 1,388
841 52,721,825 - 424600 53,146,425 18,177,756 - 1,378,642
Shares; = __
Listed companies 926,733 (498,083)] 175140 05,510 1.111,130
Unlisted companies 842 5§ 164, - 876 5,68 28,
82,883 (821,217) 175,140 636.485 1,167,014 {S€4,074) 38,510
HNon Government Debt Securities
Uniistgd Bad 1,322,105 1111,455) 10,606 1,221,536 1,458,805 {111,455) 1,243 1,348 593
Forelgn Securities _
Government sacunties 8451 480,083 . 14,359 494,442 4€5,289 ' - I 6,044 471,313
Non Government debt secunties B.4.8.2 1,806,038 1,618, 2,165,808 - 10,383 | 2,176,031
2,086,118 - 27,666 2,112,785 2,630,037 - 16.407 2,847,342
Total investments 43531 875 1435102 24 BE5
2020 2018
= (Rupees in '000) ——
Provision for diminution in vaiue of Investments
Opaning balance 676,829 573,850
Cnargs / reversals . -
Charge for the year 118 4TS 265,402
Revarsal on disposals 161 163,723
[{] 101,878
Closing ba/ance m
2020 2019
Han- MNon-
porforming performing
Investment Provislon investment Provision
e seessaaeee [RUPSES 1) '000) o rmmmmerormmemmeee
Perticulars of provision against dubt securities
Catsgory of classification
Domestic
Other assets espacislly mantionad . . . a
Substandard - - -
Doubtiul - - . =
Loss 111,458 (111,456) 111,458 {111,455)
117,485 (111,486) 111455 (79355
4 ”
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8.4  Quallty of avallable for sale securities
Details regarding quality of available for sale (AFS) securities are as follows:
2020 2018

B.4.1 Federal Government securities Cost
=== (Rupees In '000) —-

- Government guaranteed

ljarah sukuk 25,974,598 2,055,933
Bai muajjal 4,631,375 4,118,526
Others 22,116,852 12,003,297

52,721,626 18,177,756

8.4.2 Shares - at cost

Listed companles
Chemicals and pharmaceutical 68,845 73,448
Fertilizer 61,847 46,268
Cement 102,795 173,174
Textile 22,856 22,856
Power generation and distribution 110,127 134,756
Qil and gas 269,829 271,662
Refinary 34,248 56,9683
Sugar 41,961 41,961
Paper and board 71,408 71,409
Automobile assembier 47,070 58,549
Enginesering 47,195 83,537
Cable and electrical goods 32,461 32,461
Miscellaneous - 13.584
910,741 1,080,519
2020 2019
Cost Break-up value Cost Break-up value
8.4.3 Unlisted companies (Rupees in '000)
Takaful Pakistan Limited™ 52,200 26,048 £§2,200 26,046
Crown Textile Mills Limited*™ - - - -
SWIFT 4,630 4,630 4,484 4,484
£8,830 30,678 56,684 30,530

" The break-up value of Takaful Pakistan Limited is Rs.5.25 per share as per the available (un-audited) financial
slatements for the period ended 20 September 2020 and Rs.5.78 per share as per the (audited) financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019,

** The Bank holds 444,656 (2018: 444,656) shares of Crown Textile Mills Limited which were transferred at nil value upon
amalgamation of Pakistan branches of Al Baraka Islamic Bank BSC.(C) wilh and into the Bank.

2020 2019
8.4.4 Non Government debt seourities Cost
--—- (Rupees in '000) --—
Unlisted
- AA+ 500,000 500,000
- A+ 499,450 466,750
-A 211,200 281,800
- AA. - 100,000
- Non-performing 111,465 111,485
1,322,106 1,458,805
B.4.5 Foreign securlties 2020 _ 2018
Cost Rating Cost Rating
8.4.5.1 Government securities (Rupess in '000)
- Oman dﬂﬁlﬂﬂ BEB 465269 BEB
2020 2019
8.4.5.2 Non Government debt securities Cost
=== (Rupees in '000) —-
Listed
- A% 805,446 1,652,732
A 798,590 812,938

1,605,036 2,185,896
‘g_ £ ———— ——~ 1}
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9. ISLAMIC FINANCING AND RELATED ASSETS Performing _w Total
2020 2018 2019 2020 2018
Nots (Rupm in '000)

« Murebeha financing a1 3,362,130 4,138,643 2,782,161 2,822,420 6,144,294 6,661,083
- Advence against murabaha financing 164,741 785,548 203,337 203,337 358,078 086,608
- Expert rafinance under 1slamic scheme 247,000 330,000 87,605 87,808 334,506 417 BOS
- Advance against expon rafinance

under lsiam ¢ scheme 4,470,666 3,035,032 - . 4,470,568 3,636,032
« Diminishing musharaka and ljarah financing 9.2 41,606,252 35,050,408 2,267,830 2280232 43,874,082 47,347 840
- Agvance sgainst diminishing musharaka hnance 1,360,224 393,811 . . 1,350,224 303,611
- Rurning musharaka 11,820,644 316,854 - . 11,830,644 318,054
- Tljarah finance 1,768,385 1.758,078 - . 1,758,285 1,758,076
- Over dus aczeplances 15,400 155,805 505,913 482,825 544,313 848,860
- Paymenl against guarantea 15,081 14,581 40,291 47,743 55312 62,208
- Paymenl against documents 428,569 142,434 . - 429,660 142 424
- Advance sgeinst salam 8,630,862 12,120,902 2302703 2,201,301 B.933,365 14,322,203
- Salam nventory 183 - - B 193 B
- Financing agairs! biis 831 611.179 13,736 13,735 12,126 624,014
- Istasna finance - 16,800 5T6.2M 578,271 576211 502,871
- Advente against istasna 15,551,217 11,437,663 698,108 495,365 16,285,323 11,633,028
- latagna inveniory 179,536 731,828 13,256 . 192,792 731,028
- Qarz-e-Hasna 83,268 91,202 20,900 21475 114,168 112,777
- Rahnuma travel services - - - 48 - 48

Islamic hnancing and related assels - gross 87,343,358 72,039,896 9,612,008 9,250,328 97,355,367 81,280,324

Provisiang fer non-parforming financing

- Specific 0.6 | (6,557,882) {6,678,672)
- General 8.5 1513 41 (1&9 518,641 180,940
15 (1€, ﬁ 5 (7,076,323) (5,848 ,612)
iz francing nd rited sssets - ot of provions  _STSTCTYE VISTUUES _ ESSSSIS  SETSEE _SONEOE _ YEATTIT
2020 18
Note ——— [RUpaes In ﬁ ——
81 Muratshs receivabie - gIoss 6,590,594 7,565,044
Less: Daferrad murabzhe income 9.1.3 {398,707} (451, 7117)
Proiit recaivabie shown in other assats _{50.596) (143 164)
Murabaha financing S&HI 8,681,062
§.1.1 The movement in murabaha financing during the year is as 'clows
Opening balance 6,961,083 9,892,372
Sales during the year 10,808 417 14,148,471
Adjusled during the year 11 189 17,080.780
Closing balance
9.1.2 Murabaha sale price 6,590,594 7,556,044

Murabaha purchase prica Eﬂﬂgi[ 16,801,063)
- — *‘

9.1.3 Deferrad murebaha income

Cpening talance m.‘m 447,525
Arising during the year 784 888

Loss Recognised cdunng ha yaar qlolga-l]
Closing balance

9.2 This includes jjarsh financing contracts amounting to Rs. 430 (31 December 2018 Rs. 6§25 B) million which incluces jarah caniracts of Rs. 109.4 million entered up
o Decembar 2008, Thase are accounied for @s linance lease whare by assels undar ljereh agreements aro presenied as a receivable at an amount equal io net
investment n igrah.

8.21 2020
Cost Deprciaion ________ _ Bookvaluo _
Asat0! Additions! Asat3t Asat01  Chargel reversal Asatd As at 31
Jan 2020  (deletions)  Dec 2020 Jun 2020 for the year Dec 2020 Dac 2020
[Rupees in '000)
Plant and machinery 864,080 (121,837) 742,462 606,395 (68,187) £38,208 204,264
Vehicles 1,602,535 (692,318) 880,217 1,014,347 (302,968) 704,381 285,836
Total 2,848,634 (B13,866) 1,732,679 sen,nz ($78,153) 1,242589 450,080
2010
Cosl Depreciation Book value
As at 0% Additions / As gt M1 As ot 01 Charge/ reversal As at 31 As at 21
delotions 2018 for the year 9
(Rupees in '000)
Plant and machinesy 1,220,597 [356.438) 854,008 833,283 (228,863) 606,395 28‘! ?04
Vehicles 2,827 497 D€ 1,682 1,351,847 337, 1,014,347
Total 28, : X ZABE.170 —}ﬂﬁi 185,743 W
9.3 Particulars of Islamic financing and relatad assets (Groas)
In local cuTency §7,300,591 80,433.28¢

In foreign currency ﬁ 851,038
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|slamia financing and selated assels include Rs 8 512.008 millien (31 December 2018: Rs.9,250 228 millon) which have been placed under non-performing status as
cetallad balow:

2020 2019
Classified Islamic financing and Classified islamic financing
Gategary of Classification related assots Provision snd relsled assots Eom
{Rupeas in "000)

Domestic
Giher assets espacially menioned 28,208 . 24 BSS -
Substandard 507176 10C,6564 874 448 81,338
Qoubiful 366,796 75,158 1,642,187 203,142
Loss 8,508,828 6,391,889 €,606,838 5,392,182

!,IE‘I!EE glil'l'tlﬂ B.250,378 5&?!IGT2
Particulars of provisicns against non-performing lslamic financing and releted assets

2020 2013

Specific General Tatal Speeific Gonsral Tatal
MNote B {Rupeas in '000)
Cpaning balance 5,676,672 169,940 5,646,612 4,614,044 145,978 4,760,022
Charge for the year 1,002,384 248,701 1,361,085 1,321,478 23,82 1,345,438
Revarsals far the year (113,218 - 113,21 (258,228)' - {258,
889,188 348,701 1,237,870 1,082,250 23,862 1,088,212
Amaunts wrillan o against provision LX) {11,826) . 111,625) (91) - (81)
Ampunts cherge for the y2er -
apriculture financing 3,467 : 3,467 469 -

Closing balance 8,557,882 518,641 7,076,323 5675.672 166,840 5848612

The above provision against non-performing islamic financing has been computed afier considening allowable forced sale value (FSV) of collalersl amounting to Rs,
2,532.521 millon (31 Decomber 2019, Rs. 3,063.578 milion). The F5V benelit recognized is not allowed for distribution of cash or stock dividend lo sharehokders and
bonus ta employees,

Tne Eank maintains general reserve (provisions) In Beex with the app requirements of Prudential Regulatione fur consumer financing.

In additian, the Bank has also maintsinad a gereral provision of As. 300 milion agains! financing made on prudent basis, in visw of prevalling sconomiz conditions. This
general provigion is in addition to the requirements of Frudential Regulations.

SBF vide its letter BPRC/BLAD-3/CMGI2011-103% hes ellcwed relaxation from further provisloning requirement against 8 financing exposurs having & provisioning
Impect of Re. 40 581 (31 December 2019 Rs 40.581) millich,

The SBP vida BPRD clrcular letter 13 of 2020 dated 26 March 2020, hae relsxed certaln classification criteria of SBP Prudsntial Reputation R-8 (Classification and
Provisioning of Assets). These Inciude dafarment of principel and profit In case customer falls in the siigibiity criteria precribed for this purpose; and ravision in critleria
of classifying cusiomer as nan-perfarming in case of delayed repayment These relaxalions are mainly applicable for ane year from the date of gircular,

Particulars of provisions against non-performing islamic financing end related assets

2020 2018

Specifiz General Total Spacific General Total

(Rup in '000)
in logal currancy 8,857,882 518,641 T.076,323 £878,872 168,940 §.845,612
In fareign currency . - - - - .
5,567,662 iimﬂ 7,078,323 5 575672 165 940 8846612
2020 2018

Particulars of write offs: = {Rupaes In '000) —
Againgl provisions 11,626 81

Datalie of loan write off of Rs. §00,000/- and above

In terms of sub-seclion (3) of Saclion 33A of the Banking Companigs Ordinanca, 1662, the Statement in respect of wrillen-off loans or any other financia! refief
of rupees five hundred thousand or above allowed (o 2 person(s) during the year ended Is given in Anpexura-1,

2020 1018

FIXED ASSETS Note we-wr [RupESS in DOD) -veer
Capital work-in-progiass 10.1 330,311 360,646
Propeily and egulpmient 102 2,076,081 087,120
Right-cf-use mssst 103 1,872,910 2,440,605

ﬂ,m 11552.2?1
Capital work-In-progross
Civil werks 298,275 345377
Advance to suppliers 52,036 15,169
Advance for purchase of properly - reialed parly 261,680 251,680
Provisions for impairment against advance for purchase of property 51,880 251,680
Total capial work-in-progress 10,11 348,511 J60 548
The movement in capital work-In-progress during the year is 8 fellewing:
Opening belanse 360,645 534,900
Paymant mads during the year 179,900 49,233
Transfer-in from Non-banking assets during the year 13.1.2 - 108,187
Transfer-out to fixed assets dunng the year (1%82,13E) (331,784)
Clasing Balance &H 350,546

.','?
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10.2  Property and aquipment

2020
Leasehold Wity ol Furniture :;ﬁca a::;
land Iea;:l:old and fixture computer Vehicles To
equipment
{Rupees in '000)
At 01 January 2020
Cost ar2,104 1,264,613 349,008 1,824,380 52,820 4,462,525
Accumulated depreciation - {704,328) (277,171) (1,372,457) {41,848) _ (2,305 BO5)
Net book value 972,104 M 71 !gav 451 ;923 1 0!971 z,g;i-alzo
Year ended December 2020
Opening net book value 972,104 560,285 71,837 451,823 10,971 2,087,120
Caost:
Additions . 79,098 6,045 77,018 52,826 214,988
Cisposals - (8,837) (4,238) (85,382) {28.629) (123,884)
Write off - (10,374) (2,798) (2,613) - (15,783)
Ceproclation:
Cepresiation charge for the year s {62,050) (15,162) (85,815) (9,418) (182,445)
Clsposals . 6,205 3,801 82,723 11,444 104,370
Write off . 5,548 25M 2,576 - 10,685
Closing net book velue 972,104 570,175 62,160 430.431 40,164 2,075.061
At 31 December 2020
Cost 972,104 1,324,700 348,021 1,813,404 80,17 4,538,246
Accumulatec depreciation . (754,525} {285,861) {1,382,873) (39,828} _{2.483,185)
et book value 972,104 570,175 §2.160 430,431 40,191 _2,078,081
Rate of depreciation (%) . 5% - 10% 10% 10% - 50% 20%
2019
Leasshold Dulldingon oo iiire ofﬂ:e and
land '“;T_:fld and fixture computer Vehicies Total
aquipment
{Rupeaes in '000)
At 01 January 2018
Cost 707,104 1,181,095 242,849 1,702,206 62,583 4,008,237
Accumulated depraciation - (642,034) (252,403) (1,301,007) (50,668) (2,256,112)
Nat book value 707,104 543.051 B0 545 401,188 12,315 1.750.225
Year ended December 2018
Opening net bock value 707,104 543,061 80,546 401,188 12,315 1,780,225
Cost:
Additions 265,000 78,822 10,763 142,239 3,728 500,382
Disposals - (5,104) (4,704) {20,085) {13,891) (43,764)
Wiite off - - . - - -
Depreciation;
Ceprecialion charge for the year - {65,126) (19,277) (90.427) {4,596) (179,420)
Disposals - 2,832 4,508 18,871 13,4156 38,727
Write off - - - - - -
Clusing net book value 972,104 660,285 71837 451,923 10871 __2,067,120
At 31 Dacember 2019
Cost 972,104 1,264,813 348,008 1,824 380 52,820 4,462 925
Accumulated depraciation - (704.328) (277,171) (1,372.457) (41,849) (2,386 805)
Nat book vaiue 972,104 560,285 71,837 451,823 10,971 2,067,120
Rate of depreciation (%) " - 5% - 10% 10% 10% - 50% 20%
10.3 RIght-of-use asset
2020 2018
Note ~- (Rupges In '000) ——
At 01 January 2,440,805 -
Adjustment due to adoption of IFRS 16 - 2,386,960
At 01 January 2,440,805 2,385,580
Additions during the vear 305,536 676,894
Depraciation charge during the year 27 (835,140) (622,249)
Derecognition during the year {23,083) -
Mcdification {115,008)

At 31 December 10.3.1 11272!910 2,440,805
]
=

10.3.1 Tha right-of-use asset iz against the branch offices of the Bank. -




10.4

10.5

10.6

g

1.1

Dispaosal of assets - ralated party

Page 23

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

Delails of disposal of fixed assels made to any related party otherwise than through a regular auction are as follows:

Accumulated Book Sale Mode of
Description Cost depreclation value proceeds disposal Particulars of purchaser
——-——=—— (Rupees In "000) —eemeee
Vehicles _
Honda Civic 3,728 497 3,232 3,232 As perBank's  Mr. Ahmed Shuja Kidwai -
policy Chief Executive Officer
Mercedes Benz 15,000 9,600 5,500 5,500 AsparBank's Mr Nadeem Amijad - Ex
policy Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Computers
Laptop 357 242 115 115 AsperBank's Mr. Nadeem Amjad - Ex
policy Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Laptop 72 58 14 16  As perBank's Mr. Shakir Hussain Nanji - Ex
policy Employee
Laplop 107 16 92 82 As per Bank's  Mr. Ayaz Ahmed - Ex
policy Employee
31 December 2020 19,265 10,312 8,953 8,856

Property and equipment includes assets that are temporarily idle amounting to Rs 985.9 million (31 December 2019: Rs 986.9 million).

Fully depreciated proparty and equipment

Cost of property and equipment that are fully depreciated and are still in uss are as foliows:

Bullding on leasehold land

Furniture and fixture

Electrical, office and computer equipment
Vehicles

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer software

Advance to suppliers against computer software
Core deposits

Brand

Goodwill

Movement in intangibles assels Is as following

At 01 January 2020
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net book value

Year ended Decembar 2020
Opening net book value
Cost:
Additions
- through acquisitions / purchased

Accumulated amortization:
Amaortisalion charge for the year

Closing net book value

At 31 December 2020
Cost

Accumulated amorlisation
Net book value

Rate of amortisation (%)
Useful life

2020 2018
-—--- (Rupees in '000) —---
283,760 271,164
191,273 184 282
987,388 1,048, 638
30,467 31,231
1id.gg!589 1!535!315
2020 2019
Note - (Rupees in '000) -
111&11.2 69,668 101,161
20,038 9,307
1M11&11.3 460,688 587 481
114 383,145 383,145
386,117 398,117
1,328,664 1477 211
2020
Computer Core
software deposits Yot
(Rupees in '000) -——wemeeee
888,004 1,386,000 2,274,004
(78B6,843) (798,519) (1 .585.362)
101,161 587!481 638!642
101,181 587,481 688,642
19,279 E 19,279
(50,772) (126,793) (177,565)
69.668 460,688 530,356
907,283 1,386,000 2,293,283
(837,615) (925,312) (1,762,927)
69,668 688 530,3
14.29% - 33.33% _géla" -10%
3to7 Years 10 to 12 Years

24
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2018
Computer Core
software deposits Total
{Rupees In '000) e
At 01 January 2019
Cost 798,182 1,386,000 2,182,182
Accumuiated amortisation (723,038} {665.545) (1.388,583)
Met book value 73,144 720,455 793,588
Year ended December 2019
Cpaning net book value 73,144 720,455 793,668
Cost:
Additions
- through acquisitions / purchased 91,822 - 91,822
Accumulated amortization:
Amortisation charga for the year (63,805} (132 974) (196,778)
Clasing net book value 101,181 587 481 688,842
At 31 December 2019
Cost 888,004 1.388,000 2,274,004
Accumulated amorisation (786,843) (708 510 {1,5885,362)
Net bocok value 101,161 587 461 688,642
Rate of amortisation (%) 14.29% - 33.23% 8.33% - 10%
Useful life 307 Years 101012 Yenﬂr!sw

Intanglble assets include computer software thal are fully amortized and are siill in use aggregating to Rs.734.155 million {31
December 201E: Rs.698.218 million).

Core deposit is an intangible asset acquired by the Bank during its amalgemation with Ex-Emiralas Global slamic Bank Limited
and Ex-Bur] Bank Limited. The value of core deposit has been valued by Independent veluer. The carrying amount of core
deposils is Rs. 460.688 million (31 December 2018: 587.481 million) with a remaining amortization period of 6 years.

Intangible assels include brand having indefinita useful life with a carryling amount of R5.383.145 miillion (31 December 2019:
Re.383.145 million). This represents Bank's ability to attract new cusiomers and generale superior retums from existing
customers due o brand recognition. The management censiders that the benefits from usage of brand will be available to the
Bank for indefinita time period.

During the year, the managament has assessed the fair value of the Bank which exceeds its breakup value. IAS 38
"Impairment of assels” requires thal an impairment loss shall be recognized for a cash-generating unit if, and only K, the
recaverabla amount of the unlt (group of units) s less than the carrying amount of the unit (group of unils). Accordingly, ne
impairment loss has been recognized in these financial statements on the Intangible assets.

The key assumptions used for the purpcse of the projections are as under:

Discount rates

Disgount rates take inte consideration the time vaiue of money and individual risks of the underlying assats that have not been
incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Bank. The
pre tax discount rate of 15.75% per annum has besn used in the projactions.

Terminal growth value

Terminal growth rale is a slakle growth rate at which an asset will continue to grow perpetually. It is calculated using Gordon
Grwoth Model and s estrmated al 5%,

Discount for lack of marketablitity {DLOM)

The management has taken into account various characteristios such as liquidity, size of share holding elc. and estimatad 8
DLCM adjustment of 20% in valuation of the Bank.

Sansitivity to changes in assumptions

Management believes that after considering the varipus scenarios no reasonable possible change in any of tha ebove key
assumptions would cause the carrying vnlu'g of the unit to materially exceed iis recovarable amount.
=T



12,

121

13,

1341

13.1.1

Page 25

ALBARAKA BANK {(PAKISTAN) LIMITED

2020
At 01 Jan Recognised Racognised in At 31 Des
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 2020 in PAL Qci 2020
Note (Rupeas in '000)
Deductible temporary differances on:
- Tax Iogses carried forward 121 1,755,044 (610,244) - 1,244,800
- Minimum tax 503,622 {63,684) “ 538,858
- Post retirament employee benefis 13,885 - 6,386 19,281
- Provision against assets 1,251,913 | 115,617 - 1,367,430 |
3,624,374 {458,391) B,386 3,171,369
Taxable lemporary differences on:
- Surplus on revaluation of investrments {602,287) (3,424) 282,307 (223,404)
- Surplus on revaluation of non-banking essets - (129,939) - (33,008) (162,847}
- Accelerated tax depreciation (153,008)) 8,775 - (144, 234)
(785,235) 5,351 249,209 (830,868)
2,839,138 (453,040) 254,885 2,640,784
2018 _
At01Jan  Recognised Recognised in At 31 Dec
2019 in P&L ocl 2018
(Rupses in '000}
Deductible temporary differences on:
- Tax losses carried forward 1,972,183 (217,109) - 1,755,044
- Minimum fax 504,423 £8,099 . 603,622
- Post retirement employee benefits 5,642 - 4,353 13,895
- Provision against assels 1,066,512 185,401 - 1,251,913
3,552,630 67,391 4353 3,624,374
Taxahle femporary differances on:
- Surpius on revaluation of investments {2,665} (1,454) (497,967) (502,287)
- Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets (179,568} - 49,630 (128,939)
- Accelerated tax depreciation (131,286)] (21,723} - (153.006)
(313,721) (23.177) (448,337) ___ (7B5235)
3,238,902 44 214 (443 884) 2i33911 38

The deferrad tax asset on carried forward tax losses has been recognized in thesa financial statemants as the managamant
estimates that sufficient taxable profits will be aveilable in future years against which the unused carry forward tex losses and
other deductible temporary differences can be utllised. The astimates of future taxable profits are based on financial projections
of the Bank for the nexi five years approved by the Board. The projections involve certain key assumptlions underlying the
estimation of future taxable profits. Key assumplions include income {ax rates, cost to income ratio, depesit composition, Kibor
retes, orowth of deposits and Islamic financing, investment returns, product mix of Islamic financing and related assets,
potential provision against assets and branch expansion plan, Any significant change in the key assumptions may have an

effect on the realisability of ine deferred tex asset.

OTHER ASSETS

Frofit / retum accrued in local currency

Profit / return accrued in foreign currency

Advances, deposite, advance rent and other prepayments
Advance laxetion (peyments less provisions)

Receivable In respect of defined benefit plan

Recalvable against sale of shares

Non-banking assets acquired in salisfaclion of claims
Branch adjustment account

Unrealised gain on re-measurement of forward exchange contracts
Stamps and slationery

Acceptances

Others

Legs: Provision held agalnst other assets
ther assels (net of provision)

Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assels ecquired in
satisfaction of claims

Other assets - total

Markel value of nan-banking assets acquired In satisfaction of claims

Note

13.1.1

132

13.1.1

2020 2018
wmenes {Rupaas In "000) cweeee
3,810,887 3620174
15,160 17,377
441,236 378,406
106,847 231,207
. 23,351
$,798 58,838
1,362,794 1.527,768
- 126,800
80,190 10,156
5,422 4,645
1,808,125 2,828,068
273,880 267,451
8,035,349 9,166,243
{149,212) (146,140)
7,886,137 9,020,103
465,661 368,785
8,351,698 2,382,888
1,880,440 1,887,402

The non-banking asssts acquired in salisfaction of claims have been revalued by professionally qualified valuars fisted on
Pakistan Banking Assaciaticn panel of valuers namely Professional Associates, Qceanic Surveyors Private Limited, Asrem

Private Limiled, Medailion Services Private Limited and Star Teg? Consultants.
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2020 2018
Note == (Rupees in '000) -=—
13.1.2 Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of ciaims
Opening balance 1,897,653 2,173,218
Addition during the year 6,110 -
Revaluation surpius - nat 104,528 (141,801)
Digposal / transfers (127,750) (108,197)
Depreciation for tha year {32,088) (25,687)
Closing balance 1,848,365 1,897,553
13.1.3 Gain/loss on disposal of non-banking assets acquired In satisfaction of claims
Disposal Proceede 137,060 -
less
- Cost 127,750 -
- Impairment / Depreciation - -
127,750 -
Gain on disposal 9,300 -
13.2 Provision held against other assets
Non-performing recelvables 148,588 145,894
Others 248 248
148,212 146,140
13.2.1 Movement in provision held against other assels
Opening balance 148,140 148,305
Charge for the yaar 3,072 -
Raversal during the year B -
Write off - 2,165)
3,072 (2,165)
Closing balanca 149,212 148,140
14.  BILLS PAYABLE
in Pakistan 3,696,482 3223721
Qutside Pakistan - -

3,695.482 3223721
16. DUE TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Secured

Borrowings frem State Bank of Pakistan

- Under export refinance scheme 151 3,363,810 4,278,132
- Under refinance schame for payment of salaries and wages 16.2 2,368,277 -
Unsecured

Qvardrawn nostro accounts 2,249

STz __AmeTm

154 The range of profit rales on these borrowings is 1% to 2% per annum (31 December 2019: 1% to 2% per annum). The
maximum limit approved by SBP to the Bank under Islamic Export Refinanca Scheme is Rs.8.809 billion (31 December 2018:
Rs.4.56 billian), The above contracts will mature by 28 June 2021.

162 SBP vide its Circular no.08 of 2020 has Introduced e refinance schema for businesses for peyment of wages and salaries 1o
combat the impact of Covid-18. The scheme aims to finance wages end selaries of permanent, contraciual, deily wagers and
outsourced employees. The maximum limit approved by SBP 1o the Bank under this scheme is Rs, 3 billion.

2020 2018
- (Rupeas in "000) «~—
16.3 Particulars of dus to financial Institutions with raspact to currencies
In local currency 5,720,087 4278,132
In foreign currency 2,248 -

6,722,336 4278 1¥
Eq




16.

16.2

1.2

DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Cuslomsrs
Current deposits
Savings deposlls
Term deposits
Cthars

Financlal Institutions
Current deposits
Savings deposits
Term deposits

Composition of deposits

- Individuals

- Government (federal and provincial)
- Public secior enlilies

- Banking companies

- Non-banking financial Insfitutions

- Privale sector
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2020 2019
in local In foreign In lacal In farelgn
currency currencies el currancy currencies Teta)
(Rupees in '000)

32,089,367 6,414,325 38,503,862 21,674,643 4,004 672 26,479,315
53,918,588 5,083,663 65,982,161 47,273,774 4,567 408 51,841,243
47,062,823 2,080,886 49,163,709 42,002,296 1,838.320 43,840,618
1,718,888 . 1,716,866 | 1,342 347 - 1,342,347
134,787,624 13,568,774 143,358,408 112,283,060 11,310,451 123,603,621
195,242 2,722 187,964 24,097 1,342 25,438
9,463,154 681 9,483,808 4,860,580 709 4,661,278
1,326,550 - 1,325,660 ,164,050 - 1,164,050
11,003,948 3,373 11,007,318 6,048,716 2,051 8,050.767
145,781 inau 1!5572! 47 15°!£5727 116,341,778 I1|312|51c! 129,354.288

2020 2018

—weee (Rupeas in '000) —-—

67,705,607 59,197,428
9,307,923 8,020,857
2,007,679 1,854,372
578,234 887
10,428,085 8,048,879

£9,335,289 54,530,887

O L M L B
159&!3‘1'2? 129,654,288

This includes depasits eligible to be covered under insuranca arrangements amounting 1o Rs.85,545 million (31 December 2019: Rs.71,146 milllon).

SUBORDINATED DEBT

Tinr I mudaraba sukuk - first issue
Tier || mudaraba sukuk - second issue
Additional Tier | capital

2020 2018
Nate «=- (Rupeas in '000) =
171 288,704 571,420
17.2 1,500,000 1,600,000
17.3 1,388,241 1,389,241

3,174,845 3,460,661

in Seplomber 2014, the Bank issued regulatory shariah complian! unsecured, subordinaled privately placed Tier-Il sukuk (first issue) based on
mudaraba of Rs.2 billisn as instruments of redeemable capital under section 68 of the Companies Act, 2017, A brief description of Tier-Il sukuk (first

iesue) is as follows:

Credil rating A- by PACRA (The Pakislan Credit Rating Agency Limited)
lssue date 25 Seplamber 2014

Tener 7 vears from the issue date.

Profit payment fraquency Semi-annually in arrears

Redemption Semi-annually

Expsactad pariedic profit amount (mudaraba
profit amaunt}

Mudaraba profit is computed under the general depositors’ poal an the basis of Profit Sharing Ralio
(PSR) and monthly weightages announced by the Bank. Profit rate is & month KIBOR + 1.25% per
BITILITL.

Call pption

The Bank may ¢all Tiar-ll Sukuk with prior appreval of SBP after completion of five years from the date
of issue,

Loss absorbency

The Ties-ll Sukuk, at the option of the SBP, will be fully and permanently converted inlo common shares
upan the occurrence of a Point of Nen-Viability (PONV) trigger event as determined by SB8P or for any
other reason as may be diracted by SBP.

Lock-in-clause

Prefit and/er redemption amount can be held back in regpect of the Tier-il Sukuk, if such payment will
resull in & shertfall In the Bank's Minimum Capital Requirement {MCR) or Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)
reguirement,

in August 2017; the Bank issued regulalory shariah compliant unsecured, subordinated privately piaced Tier-ll sukuk (second lssue) based on
mudaraba of Rs.1.5 billion as instruments cf radeemable capital under section 66 of the Companies Act, 2017. A brief description of Tier-ll sukuk

(emcond [ssua) is as follows:

Cradit rating A by JCR-VIS Credil Rating Company Limited.
Issue dats 22 August 2017

Tanor 7 years frem the issue dale.

Profit payment frequancy Semi-annually In arrears

Redemption Bullet paymanl at the end of the seventh year.

Expected periodic profil amount (mudarapa
profit ameunt)

Mudaraba profit is compuded under the genetal depositors' pool on the basis of profit Sharing Ratlo
{PSR) and manthly weightages announced by the Bank, Profit rate is 8 month KIBOR + 0.75% per|
annum.

Call optich The Bank may call Tler-ll sukuk with prior approval of SBP after comgistion of five years from the dale
of issue.
Loss absorbency Tha Tier-ll sukuk, at the option of the SBP, will be fully and permanently converted inlo cemmon shares

upon the cceurrence of a Point of Non-Viability (PONV) Irgger event as determined by SBP or for any
cother reason es may be direclec by SBP,

Laock-in-clause

Profit amount can be hald back in respect of the Tier-Il sukul, If such payment will result In a shortfall In
the Bank’s Minimum Capltal Requirement (MCR) or Capital Adeguacy Ratio (CAR) requiremsant.

£
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17.3 In December 2018, the Bank issued regulatory shariah compliant unsecured, subordinated privately placed additional
Tiar-{ (ADT-1) capital based on modaraba of Rs.1.389 billion. A brief description of additional Tier-l1 (ADT-1) capital is as

18,

18.1

follows:

Credil rating Nol rated

Issue date 28 December 2018
Tenor Perpetual

Profit payment frequency Manthly
Redemption Perpetual

'Expected periodic profit amount
(mudaraba profit amount)

|Bank. Profit rate is 1 Year KIBOR + 2.50% per annum.

Mudaraba profit is computed under the genaral depasiters' pool on the basis|
of Profit Sharing Ratio (PSR) and monthly weightages announced by the

Call option

The Bank may cal! Tier-ll sukuk with prior approval of SBP after completion
of five years from the date of issue.

Loss absorbency

The ADT-1 capital, at the option of the SBP, will be fully and permanently
converted into commen shares upon the occurrence of a Point of Non-
Viabliity (PONV) trigger event as determined by SBP or for any other reason
as may be directed by SBP

Lock-in-clause

Profit and / or redemption amount can be held back in respect of the ADT-1
capital, if such payment will result in a shortfall in the Bank's minimum
Capital Requirement (MCR) or Capitai Adequacy Ratio (CAR) requirement.

OTHER LIABILITIES

Return on deposits and borrowings:

2020 2019
Note w-= (Rupees in '000) «ve-

- payable in local currency 1,070,591 1,225,143
- payable in foreign currencies 1,308 9,420
Accrued expenses 435,346 369,762
Advance payments 709,536 415,437
Charity fund balance 18.1 77,238 46,351
Security deposits against ijarah 302,103 627,296
Payable against purchase of listed shares 3,310 5,738
Payable in respect of defined benefit plan 7,899 -
Taksful payable against ijarah and diminishing musharakah assets 319,258 283,699
Branch adjustment account 396,685 -
Acceptances 1,808,125 2,898,069
Lease liability against right-of-use assets 1,966,167 2,309,434
Others 729,113 532,511
7,826,680 8,633,660
Charity Fund
Opening balance 46,351 46,736
Additions during the year
Received from customers on account of delayed payment 62,976 49,151
Dividend purification amount 928 382
Non-shariah compliant income 20,467 1,186
Profit on charity saving account 33 47
Others 114 5
84,518 50,771
Payments / utilization during the year
Education (16,031) (6,818)
Health (33,920) (25,782)
Mass wedding - (1,635)
Infrastructure and development (3,130) (2,520)
Others (550) (14,401)
(63,631) (51,156)
Closing balance 77,238 46,351

By
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18, SHARE CAPITAL

1.1 Authorized capital

2020 2019 2020 2019
~--=-=Number of shares------ - (Rupees in '000) ——-
2,000.01:!0‘000 2,000.000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 20,000,000 20,000,000

19.2 lssued, subscribed and pald up capital

2020 2019 2020 2019
s NUMber of sharesse-«-- -===-= (Rupees In '000) -
Ordinary shares of Rs.10
450,000,000 450,000,000 each fully aid in cash 4,500,000 4,500,000
|ssued for consideration
923,962,760 923,962,760 other than cash 9,239,628 9,239,628
1,373,962,780 1,373,962,760 1 3.?39.638 13,739,628
B Add: Capital support fund* 1,393,628 1,393,628
- - Less: Discount on issue of shares {632,7686) (832,766)
1,373,962,760 1,373,962,780 14,600,480 14,500,490

* In order to support the CAR requirements, Al Baraka islamic Bank, B.S.C (c) (Parent Bank) has injected the
temparary Capltal Support Fund amounting to Rs 1.389 billion (USD 8 million) which is an aliowable capital for
the purposes of CAR, MCR and Leverage ratic. These funds can only be remitted back after prior approval of
SBP, In case capital of the Bank is not increased through alternate plans, the said capital support fund will be
converted into Share Capital of the Bank. Presently, SBP has allowed the Bank, timeline extention for the
commencement of conversion process of Capital Support Fund into Share Capital till June 2021. At present,
the Bank does nol have relevant basis to delermine the number of shares to be Issued at the time of
conversion, accordingly the diluted EPS cannot be ascertained.

19.3 Shareholders having mere than 10% shareholding in 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Number of  Percentage of Number of Percentage of
Name of shareholder shares held shareholding shares held shareholding

AlBaraka Islamic Bank (Bahrain) B.S.C. (c) 812,448,082 59.13% 812,446,082 59.13%
Islamic Corporation for the Development

of the Private Seclor 162,847,717 11.85% 162,847,717 11.85%
Mal Al Khaleej Investment L.L.C. 158,360,039 11.53% 158,360,039 11.53%
2020 2019
Note - (Rupees in '000) ——

20. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS

Surplus on revaluation of:

- Available for sale securities 8.1 647,529 1,454,121
- Non-banking assets acquired In satisfaction of claims 201 465,561 371,253
1,113,090 1,825,374
Deferred tax on surplus on revaluation of: =
- Aveilable for sale securities (226,635) (508,942)
- Non-banking assels acquired in satisfaction of ciaims 20.1 {162,046) (129,938)
{389,581) (638,880)

723,608 1,186,494
T
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2020 20189
Note -—- {Rupe¢s in '000) —-—

20.1 Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets
acquired in satisfactlon of claims

Surplus on revaluation as at January 1 371,253 513,054
Realised on transfer / disposal during the year 104,528 (141,801)
Realised on disposal during the year (10,220) -
Surplus on revaluation as at December 31 485,581 371,253

Less: related deferred tax liability on:

- revaluation as at January 1 (129,838) (179,568)
- surplus realised on transfer / disposal during the year (36,585) 49,630
- surplus realised on disposal during the year 3,577 -
(162,946) (129,938)
302,615 241,315

21, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

- Guarantees 211 8,052,300 8,233,893
- Commitments 21.2 43,468,442 34,171,298
51,520,742 42,406 292

21.1 Guarantges:

Financial guarantees 8,017 8,125
Performance guarantees 4,919,029 6,244,836
Other guarantees 3,124,254 1,980,032

8,052,300 8,233,883

21.2 Commitments:

Documentary credits and short-term trade-related transactions

- |stters of credil 10,638,401 7,402,115
Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts 21.21 32,815,873 26,763 483
Commitments for acquisition of operating fixed assets 14,168 5721

34,171,298

43,468,442 71,

L

"
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2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
21.2.1 Commitments In respect of forward forelgn exchange contracts
Purchase 16,049,814 14,154 378
Sale 16,765,959 12,608,085
32,815,873 26.763 463

21.3 Tax contingencies

21.3.1 The Bank has received various assessment orders from Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) staling that the Bank has short
paid Federal Excise Duty (FED) on spacific incoms of the Bank for the years 2009 to 2011 amounting lo Rs. 86.5 million and Rs. 34.575
million in respect of year 2012. In response lo the Bank's appeal, Appeliale Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) has set aside the orders
relating to years 2009 to 2011 for fresh adjudication and the said matter is pending decision for further proceedings. For year 2012,
Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR) Appeal has dropped the procsedings amounting to Rs.8.891 million. Accordingly, the Bank has
filed the appeal before ATIR against the order of CIR Appeal amounting to Rs.25.584 million.

In respect of assessments of ex - Bur Bank Limitad (now AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited), the taxation authorities have raised a
demand of Rs.1.8 milllon on account of minimum tax in respect of tax year 2011 which has been challenged by the management and Is
currently pending before the ATIR,

21.3.2 During the year 2020, the Bank has received assessment orders from Appeliate Tribunal (ATIR) in respect of Ex-Al Baraka Islamic
Bank B.S.C (merged with and inlo the Bank) related to varlous tax matters from tax years 2001-2011. Based on lhe advise of tax
advisor, the Bank has filed the refarance application before the Honorable High Court, Lehore against the said orders. The
managemenl of the Bank is confident thal the appesls are likely lo be decided in favor of the Bank and, hence no provision has bean
made in these financial statements for the Income tax claims amounting to Rs.116.512 million (31 December 2019: Rs.118.512 million).

21.3.3 During the year 2020, Additional Commissioner In Land Revenue (ACIR) passed the order under Section 122(5A) of the Income Tax
Ordinance on account of certain additions / disallowances of certain expenses. The Bank has filed an appeal against the said dacision
before Commissioner (Appeals - I). The management and the Bank’s tax consullant is confident that the appeals are likely to be
decided In favor of the Bank and hance no provision has been made in these financial statements for the inceme tax claims amounting
to Rs.116.487 million.

21.4  Other contingencles
21.4.1 Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debt 3,021,884 1,793,025

These mainly represent counter claims by borrowers for damagas, claimed filed by former employee(s) of the Bank and other ciaims
related to banking transactions. Based on legal advice and/or inlernal assessments, management is confidenl thal the matters will ba
decided in the Bank's favor and the possibility of any advarse outcome Is remote. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these
financial statements.

2020 2019
22. PROFIT/RETURN EARNED ON ISLAMIC FINANCING AND (Rupees in '000)
RELATED ASSETS, INVESTMENTS AND PLACEMENTS
On:
- Islamic financing and related assels 9,068,597 9,364,180
- Investmeants 3,178,556 2,427 619
- Due from financial institutions 1,794,376 1,129.084
- Balances with banks 10,965 2,443
14,062,494 12,923,326
23. RETURN ON DEPOSITS AND OTHER DUES EXPENSED
On;
- Deposits 6,697,570 6,823,174
- Borrowings 71,328 8B 403
= Conversion cost agains! fareign currency deposits / borrowings 164,365 338,842
- Subordinated debt 454,799 365,167
- Finance charge on lease liability against right-of-use asseat 205,147 224114
- Export refinance under Isiamic scheme 82,847 72,425
7,676,157 7,812,215
24.  FEE & COMMISSION INCOME
Branch banking customer fees 81,368 112,771
Consumer finance related fees 98,130 101,917
Debit card related fees and income 66,039 73,544
Investment banking fees 42,240 55,027
Commission on trade 263,752 258.377
Commission on guarantees 56,180 61,837
Commission on cash management 4,727 2419
Commissian on remittances including home remitiances 28,006 13,654
Commissicn on bancatakaful 6,038 28,748
Others 22,601 32,125
669,091 748 418

=%
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26.

27,

GAIN / LOSS ON SECURITIES

Realised
Unrealised - held for trading

Realised gain / (loss) on:

Federal Government securities
Shares
Forsign Sukuk

QOTHER INCOME

Rent on property
Gain on sale of fixed assets-net
Gain on sale of non banking assets

OPERATING EXPENSES
Total compensation expense

Property oxpense

Rent and taxes

Insurance

Utilities cost

Security (Inciuding guards)

Repair and maintenance (including janitorial charges)
Depraciation on fixed assels

Dapraclation on right of use assets

Depreciation - non banking assets

Othars

Information technology expenses
Scftware maintenance

Hardware maintenance

Depreciation on fixed assets
Amortisation

Network charges

Others

Other operating expenses

Directors' fees and allowances

Fees and allowances 1o Shariah Board
Legal and professional charges
Outsourced services costs

Travelling and conveyance

NIFT clearing charges

Depraciation on fixed assets
Amortization

Takaful and registration of |jarah
Training and development

Postage and courler charges
Communpicalion

Stationery and printing

Markeling, advertisernent and publicity
Repair and maintenance

Auditcrs’ remuneration

Depositors' protection

Brokerage, commission and bank charges
Others
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Note

251
8.1

271

272
272

27.3

272

27.2

274

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

2020 2019
(RUPBES iN "D00) +eerasseess
164,687 (99,241)
9,782 4,155
174,465 (85,088)
175,043 6,683
(33,105) (106,124)
22748 000 -
164,687 99.241)
21,208 3,510
26,776 7,331
9,300 =
57,282 10841
2,364,638 2,135,378
64,300 56,120
54,825 53,515
209,374 200,456
236,867 217,728
86,696 94,501
62,050 65126
635,140 622,249
32,088 25,867
7,575 26,636
1,369,012 1,371,001
164,081 157,810
58,272 58,596
29,377 21,320
50,772 63,805
78,674 72,030
45,037 41716
424,183 315,277
55,000 1,130
4,000 4,430
81,146 63,836
170,884 156,718
19,905 30,135
17,171 15,113
91,018 92,974
126,793 132,972
32,821 53,378
10,569 14,3564
25,972 20,863
49,144 50,006
90,344 B4,145
30,445 84,841
45,975 52,773
14,293 12,555
113,833 105,754
168,226 198,142
87,569 £1,863
1,215,308 1.283,002
5.393.641 5214,660

s
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27.3

274

28.

29,

0.1

Total compensation expense

Menagerial remuneration
i) Fixed
ii) Total variable
of which
a) Cash bonus / awards
&) Bonus and awards in shares
Charge for defined benefit plan
Contributian to definad contribution plan
Rent and house maintenance
Ulllites
Medical
Conveyance
Others
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2020 2019
=reeene- (RUpees in "000)

1,286,847 1,188,081
69,747 63,786
89,747 68,786
78,615 51,847
94,101 81,817

328,758 206,722
107,694 87,804
120,089 105,105
268,001 244,301

1,008 108

2,364,638 2136379

These amounts include cutsourcing services with regards to janitorial services, security services, contractual
employees over third party contracts and printing ectivities.

This mainly includes cost relating to oulsourcing activities amounting lc Rs. 37.748 million (31 December 2019: Rs.
36,542 million) releting to Euronet Pakistan on account of IT support services and licensing fees.

Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee

Fea for limited scope review-half yearly

Fee for audit of group reporting

Fee for other statutory certifications

Fee for audit of AJK and Giigit Region branches
Special certifications and sundry advisory services
Sindh sales tax

Out-of-pocket expensas

OTHER CHARGES
Penalties imposed by State Bank of Pakistan

PROVISIONS AND WRITE OFFS - NET

Note

{Reversal) / provisions for diminution in value of investments 831

Provision against non-performing Islamic
financing and related assets

Provision against other assets

Write off against other assels

Wiite off egainst fixed agsets

TAXATION

Current
Deferred

85

30.1
12

2020 2019
{Rupees In "000}
2,835 2,637
854 704
4,174 4,508
2,899 1,631
479 446
780 736
1,089 860
1,203 944
14,283 12,555
90,667 28,489
(42,357) 101,670
1,241,337 1,086,681
3,072 ;
1,308 2,081
5,088 ;
1,207,948 1180447
321,134 243,470
453,04 44,214
774,171 199,268

The numarical reconciliation between average tax rale and applicable tax rate has not been presenied in these
fingncial stataments as the provision for current year income tax has been made under section 113 of the Income
Tax Ordinance 2001 (minimum tax on turnover) due to available tax losses brought sf“Di'Ward from prior years.
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32,

33.

38.
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35.2
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2020 2019
seseeeresee (RUpEES IN "000) wevemmneem
BASIC / DILUTED EARNING / (LOSS) PER SHARE

Prefit/ (loss) after taxation for the year 754|233 (191,686)
-— Number of shares ---

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 1,373,962,760 1,373,862,760

Basic / diluled earning / {loss) per share - Rupee 0.58 (0 1&1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balance with treasury banks 16,773,612 26,319,937

Balance with other banks 10,177,085 2,850,550
28,850,707 29,170,487

ESe A
Reconciliation of movement of llabilities to cash flow arising from financing activities

2020 2019
<essemseeee (Rupaes In '000)

Balance as at 01 January 4,645,883 3,746,277
Change from financing cash flows
Repayment of Tler |l mudaraba sukuk-first issue (285,718) (285,718)
Payment of |aase liability against right-of-use essels (648,.414) (208,396)
Receipt of Capital Support Fund - 1,393,628
Balance as at 31 December 3,811,763 _ 4,845,883

—
STAFF STRENGTH Number —--ame-
Permanent 1,725 1,770
On bank contract 281 306
Consultanis 1 1
Bank's own staff strength at the end of the year 2,007 2,077

In addition to the above, 487 (31 December 2019: 587) empioyees of cutsourcing services companies were
assigned to the Bank as at the end of the year to perform sarvices other than guarding and janitorial services.

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

General description

The Bank operates funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees. The benefits under the gratuity schems
are payable on retirement at the age of 60 or earlier cessation of service, in lump sum. The benefit is equal o ona
month's last drawn basic salary for each complsted year of service, subject to a minimum of three years of service.
The Bank contributes to the gratuity fund based on the independant actuarial valuations,

Number of Employses under the scheme

The number of smployess covered under the following defined benefit schemes are:

2020 2019
eecesss—o Number
- Gratulty fund 1,848 1679

G
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35.3 Principal actuarial assumptions

The actuarial valuations were carried out es at 31 December 2020 using the following significant assumptions:

2020 2019
Note Per annum
Discount rate 10.25% 11.75%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 10.25% 11.76%
Expecled rate of salary increase 8.25% 8.75%
354 Reconclliation of (recelvable from) / payable to defined benefit plans
Present value of obligations 336,639 284,008
Fair value of plan assets (328,640) (307,369)
7,899 (23,351)
36.6 Movement in defined benefit obligations
Obligations at the beginning of the year 284,008 240,391
Current service cost 84,220 59,542
Interest cost 30,498 30,508
Benefits paid by the Bank (61,761) (35,836)
Re-measurement gain (4986) 10,567
Obligations at the end of the year 336,539 284,008
356 Movement in fair value of plan assets
Fair value at the beginning of the vear 207,359 282,288
Expected retumn on plan assels 36,173 38,203
Contribution by the Bank - net 62,754 65,738
Benefits paid (61,761) (35,836)
Re-measurements: Net return on plan assets
over interesl income loss 358.2 15,885) (23,034)
Fair valug at the end of the year 328,640 307,358
36.7 Movement In receivable
under defined benefit schemes
Opening balance (23,351) (21,897)
Charge for the year 78,616 51,847
Contribution by the Bank - net (62,754) (65,738)
Re-measurement loss recognised in OCI
during the year 35.8.2 16,389 12,437
Closing balance 7,899 (23,351)
368 Charge for defined benefit plans
36.8.1 Cost recognised in profit and loss
Current service cost 84,290 59,542
Net interest on defined benefit asset / liability _(5,678) (7,695)
78,615 51,847
35.8.2 Re:measurements recognised in OCI during the year
Loss on obligation
- Financial assumptions (3,435) {3.881)
- Experience adjustment 2,998 (€,616)
Return on plan assets over interest income 15,885 23,034
Total re-measurements recognised In OCI 15,389 12,437

Lo
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2020 2018
wweeer—e= (RUpees in "000) —==sve-mv
359 Components of plan assets

Cash and cash equivalents - net 285,392 265,149
Units of mutual funds 43,248 42210

35.10 Sensitlvity analysis

1% increase In discount rate 301,769 255,290
1% decrease in discount rate 377,530 317,765
1% Increase in expectad rate of salary increase 379,779 319,688
1 % decrease in expected rate of salary increase 299,402 253,272
35.11 Expected contributions to be paid to the funds in the next financial year 68,148 57,138
35.12 Expected charge for the next financial year 68,148 57,138

35.13 Maturity profile

Waighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation

Distribution of timing of beneiit payments 11.26 years 11 years
Less than 12 manths 14,662 20,380
Between 1 year and 5 years 63,987 57,389
Between 6 and 10 years 191,084 168,859
Above 10 years 1,248,057 1,388,168

36.14 Risks associated with defined benefit pian
- Investment risks:

The risk arises when the actual performance of the investments Is lower than expectation and thus ¢reating a
shortfall in the funding cbjectives.

- Longev isks:

The nsk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured al the plan
level over the entire retiree population.

- fary | e risk:

The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The risk arises
when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.

- Withdrawal risk:

The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the bensfit obligation.

36. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Bank also operales a recognized contritutory provident fund for sll permanent employees. Equal monthiy
cantributions are made, both oy the Bank and the employees, to the fund at a rate of 10% cof basic salary.

2020 2018
mmeseneens (Rupees in '000) ——e-—
Contribution from the Bank 84,101 81,817
Contribution from the employees 94.101 81.817
188,202 163,634

<
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37. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2020
Directors
Key Other material
Chalrman Non uh“mh.m:ard P"E'é’;m’ management  risk takers /
. executives personnel controllers
Note (Rupees in '000)
Fees and allowances etc. 2,000 53,000 4,000 s = 5
Managerial remuneration
i} Fixed - - 7,536 22,757 125,323 74,269
ii) Total variable - - 828 1,027 8,108 4,850
of which
a) Cash bonus / awards 37 - - B28 1,027 8,109 4,850
a) Bonus & awards in shares - - - - - .
Charge for defined benefit plan - - - 1,584 6,133 3,478
Contribulion to defined contribution plan - . - 1,801 10,084 5,828
Rent & house maintenance - - - 5,702 29,700 17,517
Utilities B - - 1,801 9,534 5839
Madical - - - 1,901 10,637 5,839
Conveyance - - 1,908 227 30,960 31,383
Others - - - - - -
Total 5000 53,000 14,272 37,000 230,470 148,003
Mumber of Persons 1 9 3 1 23 Eal
2019
Directors Macibser President / Key Other material
Chairman NoN shariahboard  CEQ ~ ™Management risk takers /
executives personnel controllers
(Rupees in *000)
Fees and allowances etc 1,778 47,121 3602 - . .
Managerial remuneration
1) Fixed - - 6,682 21,225 113,801 81,696
1) Total varlable - - - 3,333 15,955 3.229
of which
a) Cash bonus / awards [ - l - I - L 3333 15,655 3229
a) Bonus & awards in shares - = - - 3 B
Charge for defined benefit plan - - . 1,467 6,331 3,431
Contribulion 1o defined contribution plan - - - 1,760 8,025 4,841
Rent & house malntenance - - - 5,280 24,035 14,488
Utilitles - - - 1,780 7,676 4829
Medical - - - 1,780 9,553 4,829
Conveyance 611 11,622 2312 - 23,287 17,628
Others - - 28 - 180 745
Total 2 387 58743 12,624 36,585 210,013 116,717
Number of Persons 1 9 3 1 21 2

The Bank also provides Bank malintained car to cartain executives for their own use and business use.

37.1  SBP has Issued guidelines and disclesure on govemance and rémuneration practices through BPRD Circular No. 1 of 2017 dated 25 January 2017
effective from 01 January 2018. The amount of bonus paycut deferred at the lime of payment to the President, Chief Executive Officer, Key
Management Personnel and othar Malerial Risk Takers / Material Risk Controllers, s per the Remuneration Policy as at 31 December 2020 amcunts 1o
Rs. 4.432 million (31 December 2019 Nil).

37.2 Fee pald to directors for participation in board and committee meetings

2020
Meeting Fees Paid —=.
For Board Committees
Human Sustainability
For
H.:I::;d Rlgk N"m';::. Resource and .-.f:me and Soclal Total amount
Committee cc"m“"mm Remuneration Committee Responsibility paid
Committee Committee
(Rupees in '000)

Mr. Adnan Ahmed Yousif 2,000 - . Ll . . 2,000
Mr. Tareq Mahmoad Kazim 2,000 - - 2,000 2,500 1,500 8,000
Mr. Abdulrahman Shehab 2,000 . 2,000 2,000 - - 6,000
Mr. Salman Ahmed 2,000 2,000 - - 2,500 . €,500
Mr. Zahid Raenim 2,000 2,000 - - 2,500 . 6,500
Mr. Ahmed Rehman 2,000 2,000 = 2,000 . - 6,000
Mr. Azhar Hamld 2,000 - 2,000 - - 1,500 5,500
Mr. Shalgaat Ahmed 2,000 2,000 - . - 1,500 5,500
Mr. Mchammed Tareq Sadeq 2,000 - 2,000 - - - 4,000
Mr. Asheque Moyeed 1,500 - - 1,500 2,000 - 5,000
19,500 8,000 6,000 7,600 9,500 4,500 55,000

LA
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219
____Mesting Fees Paid
= For Board Cmnllhu_[
Human ustainability
noerl gy NedRand ey Bowg oo Social  Total amount
eatings Compliance g meration EXecutive id
Committes Committoe RoPPONSibIlity  pa
% Commitie
{Rupees in
Mr, Adnan Ahmad Yousit 1.778 - - - - - 1,778
M. Tareg Mahmood Kazim 2,242 - - 177 1,776 1,776 7.510
Mr. Abdulrahmen Shehab 1,776 - 1778 1,778 - - £.328
Mr. Salman Ahmed 2,243 1,776 - - 1,776 - 5795
Mr. Zahid Ranim 1.778 1776 - - 2242 - 5,784
Mr. Ahmed Rehman 1.776 1,776 - 1,380 - - 4,512
Mr, Azhar Hamic 1776 - 1.778 - - 1776 5328
Mr. Shafqaat Ahmed 1,776 1,360 - . - 1,776 4,812
Mr. Mchammed Tareq Sadeq 1,778 - 1,776 - - - 3,552
Me. Najmul Hassan 1.310 - - 1310 1310 - 3,630
Mr. Asaf Mohyuddin - - - - - - .
18227 € 688 5,328 8222 7,104 5.328 46 687
= ——
Remuneration pald to sharlah board membars
2020 2019
Sl Non-R Chai ~ Reaideni  Non-Resident
—_—  Momber = Member
Fens and allowances eic. 2,000 . 2,000 14N - 1801
Managerial remuneration
i) Fixed 7.636 - 8,882 -
i) Total variable 828 - - - -
of which
n} Cash benus | awams L - I sﬁ' - ” . [ % l - l
a) Bonus & awards in sharss - - . - - -
Charge for defired berafit plan - - - - - -
Sontribution o defined contribution plan - - - - & =
Rent & house mantenance - . - . - 5
Utilities - - - - - -
Medical - . - - . &
Conveyance - 1,008 - 808 1488 222
Othars - - - - 28 %
Tou A0 ___jodm 2900 __ma _ gied 2
Number of Pescns 1 . - 1 1 1 1

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value s lhe amount for which an assel could be exchanged, or & labilly transferred. batween knowledgeadie willing parties In an arm's length

The fair value of raded investments is hased on Juoted marel prices, Mhtﬁnb‘nmﬁuﬂnﬂﬁeﬂwm Bank as ‘held to maturity, These

sscutifies are cared at amortized cost in order to comply with the requirements of BSD Circular No. 14 dated 24 Septamber 2004, Ag of 31 Decembar
2016 the Bank does rot have lnrlmlmm-'hdﬁmmmw.

The repricing profile and maturity are steted in note 43.2.5 and 43.4.1 to these financial statements.

In the opinion of the management, the fir valus of the remaining financlal assels and lisbilles ara not significantly different from their canying values
since assets and liabillties ara aithar shart term in nature or In the case of customer Islamic financing and deposits are frequently repriced.

The Bank measures fair values using the tallowing fair value hierarzhy that rafiects the significance of the Inputs used in making the measuramarts:
Level 1. Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets o lizbilities.

Level 2:Fair value measurements using nputs cther than quated prices induded within Level 1 tha: are cbsenvable for the assets or Labillty, sither
directly (e, 83 prices) er indirectly (i 8. derived from pricas).

Lavel 3 Fair value meesurements using input for the asset or llabiity that are no! basec on observable markat data (l.e. uncbservable inpuls)
i |



38.1 Fair value of financial assels
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The following lable provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Bank's assets:

On balance sheet financial Instruments

Financial assets - measured at fair value
Investments

Federal Government Securitias

Other Securities

Shares

Foreign Securities

Financlal assets - disclosed but not measured at falr value
Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks
Due from financial ingtitutions
Investments
Islamic financing and related assets
Other assets

Off-balance sheet financial Instruments - measured at fair value

Forward purchase of forelgn axchange
Forward sale of foreign exchange

On balance sheet financlal Instruments

Financlal assets - measured at falr value
Investments

Federal Governmenl Securities

Other Securities

Shares

Foreign Securities

Financial assets - disclosed but not measured at fair value
Cash and balancas wilh treasury banks
Balances with other banks
Due from financial Institutions
Investments
Islamic financing and ralated assets
Other assels

Off-balance sheet financial Instruments - measured at fair value
Forward purchase of foreign exchange

Forward sale of foreign exchange
There were no transfer between leval 2 and leval 3 during the year.

2020
Level 1 Level 2 Leval 3 Total
(Rug in '000)
20,079,599 28,435,451 - 48,515,050
- 1,121,536 - 1,121,538
605,810 - - 605,810
2,112,788 - . 2,112,785
22,798,194 29,556,987 - 52,355,181
" “ . 15,773,612
) > . 10,177,095
- . - 2,748,221
= = - 4,762,051
z . - 90,279,044
- - 6,312,268
= = 130,052,291
- 16,048,914 - 16,049,914
- 16,765,859 - 16,765,959
2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
{Rupees in ‘000)

- 15,437 872 15,437,872
166,983 166,993
612,020 - . 612,020
2,847,344 - - 2,647,344
3,258,364 15 604,865 : 18,864,220
- - . 28,319,937
. - - 2,850,550
s : : 14,598,633
- - - 5,330,856
- = - 75443712
= . 6,786,788
- - 131,330,274
14,154,378 - - 14,154,578
- 12,809,085 - 12,608,085

38.2 Valuation techniques used In determination of fair values within level 2 and level 3

Particulars Valuation approach and Input used
Federsl G imeant Securilies The fair value of federal government securities are detarmined on the basis of]
rales / prices sourced from Reuters
Non-Government Debl Securities

Investment in non-Government debt securities denominated in local Currency are
valued on Ihe basis of rales announced by the Mulual Funds Association

Pakistan (MUFAP), investment in non-Government debt securilies denominated
in other cutrencles are valued on the basis of rates laken from Blocmberg /

Foreign Government Debt Securities

The fair value of overseas Governmeni securities are denominaled on the basi
ol rates laken from Bloomberg / Reuters.

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The valuation has been determined by interpolating the mid rates anncunced by
State Bank of Pakistan.

Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - Gross

Non banking assels acquired in salisfaction of clams are revalued on a periodic]
basis using professional valuers The valuation is basec on their assessment of]

the market value of the assets.

s
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38, SEGMENT INFORMATION
39.1 Segment Detalls with respect to Business Activities

Profit and Loss

Net profit / return gamed
Inter segment revenue - net
Other income

Total Income

Segmenl direct expenses

Infer segment expense allocation
Total expenses

Provisions

Profit { (loss) bafore {ax

Statement of Financial Position
Cash and balances with lreasury banks
Balances with other banks
Due from financial institutions
Investments
Net inter seament lending
Islamie financing and related assets - performing
- nen-perfarming
Others
Total assets

Bills payable

Due to financial institutions
Subordinaled debt

Deposits and othar accounts
Net inter sagment borowing
Others

Total Habllitles

Equity

Total equity and llabllities

Contingencies and commitments

Profitand Loss

Net profit / return sarned
Inter segmeant revenus - net
Other income

Total Income

Segment direct exp

Inter sagment expenss allocation
Tolal expenses

Provisions

Frofit / (loss) before tax

Statemaont of Financial Position
Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks
Due from financial Institutions
Investments
Net inter segment lending
Islamic financing and relalad assets - performing
- non-performing
Cthers
Total assets

Bills payabie

Due to financial institutions
Subordinatled dabl

Deposits and other accounts
Net inter segment Bormowing
Others

Total liabilities

Equity

Total aquity and llabilities

Contingencies and commitments

39.2 nt details with rasp

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT ANALYSIS

Profit before lax

Tolal assats

Tolal iabiities

Tota| equity and lisbllities
Contingencies and commiments

t to geographical locations
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2020
Corporate Commercial & Retall & Consumer Trading & Oiirs Total
Banking SME Banking Banking Sales
- [Rupess In '000)
4,873,921 193,938 (2,803,024) 4,267,480 [455,988) 6,376,337
- . 6,921,887 . 1,231,000 B, 162,567
370,879 143,318 274,787 1,161,763 (64,696) 1,885,749
5,244,500 337,254 4,893,330 5429283 710,216 16,414,653
(208,049) (920,498) (4,021,118) (95,272) (269,788) (5,615,734
4,324,782 1,288,521 . 116,308 - [8,152,567)
(4,523,831) 368,028 (4,021,119) (5,211,678) [269,789) (13,868,301)
753,488 84,753 0,273 42,857 22,293 1,207,948
{42,817) 40,827 81,938 260,832 418,224 1,538,404
- 4,851,084 10,922,528.00 - 15,773,612
- - 10,177,085 - 10,177,085
. - - 2,748,221 - 2,748,221
4,004,768 - - 53,022,484 - 57,117,232
- 28,823,155 107,779,875 - 8,112,163 142,415,193
53,995,510 12,218,682 19,477,902 . 1,634,744 87,324,718
1,238,379 858,858 1,033,348 . 26,943 2,954,328
3.152,991 1,325,801 :,?u,ggz 1,018,198 7,565,926 16,718,418
62,478,848 38,724,178 135,897,7 78,788,506 18,330,776 335,228,815
. - 3,696,482 - - 1,696,482
4,439,072 1,280,118 - 2,248 - 6,722,336
- - - - 3,474,945 3,174,845
17,199,482 33,137,752 109,028,493 - 159,363,727
40,734,080 4,196,014 19,602,884 77,783,208 . 142,415,193
147,931 770,768 2,918,902 9,011 3,879,067 7,826,680
62,521,485 39,383,650 138,336,771 77,804,485 7,164,012 322,199,363
42,81 340,528 581,838 84,041 11,185,764 13,029,452
478,848 39,724,176 135,397,708 78,788, 18,339,776 335,228 815
11786383 6904318 14168 32818873 347,088 51,867,810
2018
Corporate Commercial & Trading &
Banking SME Banki Retall Banking Sales Others Tolal
(Rupees In '000)
4,985,185 426,358 (2,498,158) 2,408,618 (310,802) 5,011,111
- 1.014,0%8 6,834 052 - 836,408 8,634 818
271,090 125,512 358,291 680,479 18,831 1,430,203
5,256,288 1,565,966 4842187 3,069,087 342,397 15,075,932
(198,342) (480,616) (3,179,610) (72,044) (1,312,691) (5.243,303)
(5,392,461) - - (3.242.157) - (8.834.618)
(5.5890,803) (480,61€) (3.179,610) (3,314,201) (1,312,691) (13,877,321)
(795,115) (231,334) (58,071 101,678 4,243 1,180,441)
(1,128 633) 854018 1,604,506 (345,782) (574.537) 7,570
- 28,319,937 - - 26.318.837
- - - 2,850,550 2,850,550
- - - 14,508,833 14,598,633
4812,102 - - 18,582,783 - 24,194,885
- 18,295,243 74,818,577 - 7,299,404 100,214,224
40,601,834 13,324,235 15,761,145 611,179 1,571,662 71,870,085
1,519,938 1,730,172 280,514 - 43,032 3,573,657
3,729,819 825419 3,544,818 1,282 846 9,191,807 18,574 608
50,463,464 34,176,069 120,525,981 08,825,591 18,105,608 262,108,450
- - 3,223,721 - - 3,223,721
2,254,000 164,000 . 1,830,132 - 4,278,132
. - - - 3,460,661 3,460,681
6,209,562 27,750,218 85,684,410 - - 128 654,288
43,022,157 £311,108 15,628,488 36,252,471 - 100,214,224

107,308 65,729 4374888 4531 4,081,326 B 833,860
51,593,127 33,321,053 118,521,485 38,087 234 7.541,987

249,464 B85

{1,128 833) B854 016 1,804 806 838,757 10,563 9818 12,731,564
50,463 494 34,175,068 125‘ 891 38,825,891 18,105,905 252,196,450
7,663,613 7,672,485 5721 26,783 483 2305551 42,636 873
- Pakistan
2020 2019

~—- (Rupees in '000) ——
1,630,404 7,570
192,813,822 161,982,226
179,784,170 148,250,662
192,813,622 181,982,226
51,867,810 42,635,873

E,.[
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40, TRUST ACTIVITIES

=

Thsau&wmmumlauustnnsﬂdmothorf-duduyr.apa:dluuuruunnImlaoiqun-phmuuummderﬁdmu.twu.mmbmmwmmnm
neluing on behall of certan relatpd partias Thesd Gre nol assets of the Senk and are nol included in the 51 of Financial Position, The fcilowing is the fist of asssts held under
Trust
2019 2 gl ]
Category Type Number of IP5 aecsunt Face valuz
=== (Ruppes (n ‘000) —-
Tekatul company Sovernmont of Pekisian Nans Suluk 1 1 816,600 143.500
Empioyes urce Governmant of Peluslan (jame S ulak - - . -
1 1 FIE 12@
. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Bark hey relalod parly (ransnetans with (5 parent, employeo barefit plars snd s o and Koy Manag Fertonnel,
lneanm-mnmmmnliuurlumlhnwmmmdw“mmMNwmmnhrmmmuwﬂmﬂ“mm
Canlnbutions 10 and secruals in respast of empleyse benalit plons oa mads in <@ wih the ach | isna / lerma of the contributien plsn R fior o the thvas / offoss is

delzrmned in rdanca with the | af ther

Delanls of Iransactions with ralaled paries curmg the year other than thess which have bean disciosed clsaswhers in (Rese Nnencial stetaments am as f&iows:

2020 2018
Kay Othar Key
Parent Directors management  related Total Parert  Direclors mansgement Dtk setaiag Tatal
parsonns!  parties personnei  Pufiee
Note {Rupess in '000)
talamic lnancing and related assats
Qpenng DyancE - . 260,522 . WAL - - 258,572 30122 205,664
Addition during the year - - €1,080 - #1,280 . = 83,620 . 63,820
Repani dunng tha year * . 48 528) . 145.828) - L 48.237) [EVRE -] 76.359)
Trensfer imffoutl - - 128,959} - (2m,852) (23,433) . (2343
Grsngsaes - — - SN ) EN— =Y 74
Fized assvin
PR : - e 251880251000, = : — 23050251880,
Povio e sepaioes : : —Y T ; : 180 e 251850
Othar assots
Prulit tscelvable on lalamie
hnancing and refatad aasats - . 430 . 430 - - 213 - 213
Recewablie i respsct
of ciefined bere’t 2131 . : : ; : 2 2 : %Sl
2020 w1
Key Qiher Key
Parwnt Diractors  mandgement  relsisd Total Parent  Directers management CREENG -y
persannel porsonnel UM
(Rupses In "000)
Subordinated dobt 1,380,241 . - . 1,389,241 1,385,241 - . . 1,485 241
Depasits and other nt
Cpenng nalsnce 4413 24165 007 1,020,924 1,334,223 8937 211022 ITETs T84T 1.030.350
Recewed ounng INs yesr 1 411,368 W3 1,629 698 2.304.080 1 409,223 333,779 2512880 23235883
Withadrawn during Ina yaar . (403,857) (299.083)  (1,B83,883) (2,266,693} {1.525) (370,2:5) (204,161)  (2.270.411) (2,951,343)
Transfer ndedl) 11,588 By,24! 63,560 - - [aos) (283) (GBS}
Closmgbalwee 4414 08, 1& 1 1 1 41
Othar Liabilles
Resm paysble an deoosds - 1,210 102 308 3,767 - 418 29 e 2478
Retn pavable on Sub-ordated desl 223,914 - . . 273,014 63,378 - - . 98378
Payabie in respaci
aof cafined bonalil plan . . . 7,809 1,609 - = - ¥ F
Cihwer liabilins - - . 57 657 - - - asy 8T
Non-funded exposure - . . 0,869 0,860 - - . 78,180 78,160
2020 a0
Koy Other Koy
Pasol  Dirsctors  mansgesent  ristvd Total Parent  Directors mamagement OU' Wed Lo
parssnnel partles personnal
Relatad party transacions (Rup in '000)
Income
Peofil samad en Islamic
tmensing end refated sasety - . 8,432 . 8,132 - . 10177 1.689 11,866
Revanus sarmed from non kunded expasurn - - - 1.3 1] - - - 283 03
Expunse
Retm on Sepcdts uEpEBES . 17,50 1,402 41,960 66,200 - 17,505 1,368 84,822 109465
Salanss, oliowaness and banefils - - 18812 - 249,012 - - 235,807 . 235,867
Direcior fee and oiner ofiowances - 58,000 . . £5,000 - 61,120 . - 81,130
Sharialh Board lee . - . 4,000 4,000 - - - 4,430 4,430
Rent Exoanse - . . 3950 39,803 - - . 39,051 38,881
Canlrunon 1 defingd conlntulion plan . - - 84,901 84,101 - - - 81,817 51,817
Coninrution 1o defined beneft plan - - - 78,818 0,615 - - - 51,847 51847
R 01 Sub-ordineted joan nm - - . 20,272 P x Bt - - . 0.2
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):
Paid-up capital (net of losses)

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR):

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

2020 2018
- (Rupees in "000) -—

11,873,712 1 640

Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital 8,874,080 7,510,836
Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital 1,389,241 1,355,031
Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital 10,263,321 8,865,867
Eligible Tier 2 Capital 1,539,536 2,258,385
Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2) 11,802,857 11,124 252
Risk Weighted Assats (RWAs):

Credit Risk 77,349,830 71,806,837
Market Risk 1,702,497 1,587,601
Operalional Risk 12,459,666 10,234,079
Total 91,511,893 83,628 517
Common Equity Tier 1 Capitel Adequacy ratio 0 B.BB'@-
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 11 % 10.60%
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 12.80% 13.30%
The minimum capital adequacy ratio required by SBP as at 31 December 2020 is 11.5% (31 December 2019: 12.5%).

Leverage Ratio [LR):

Eligible Tier-1 Capital 10,263,321 8,865,867
Total Exposures 249,237,843 206,275,588
Leverage Ratio 4.12% 4.30%
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR):

Total High Quality Liquid Assels 65,751 43,284,366
Total Net Cash Qutflow 35,490 34,820,470
Liquidity Coverage Ratio 1@_ 124 25%
Net 8table Funding Ratio (NSFR):

Total Available Stable Funding 134,272 111,735,549
Tolal Required Stable Funding 76,869 68,811,546

Net Slable Funding Ratio

174.68% 162 38%

The full disclosures on the CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS as per SBP instructions
issued from lime fo time have been placed on the website. The link to the full disclosure is available al www.albaraka com.pk

RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary goal of risk management is to identify, assess and monitor risks inherent in the activities of the Bank and
take adequate measures to manage and control these risks on timely basis. This will help in achisving sustainable
business growth and financial and non-financial targets with better protection and soundness. The Bank's aim is to
achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimizing potential adverse effects on the Bank's
financial performancs.

This section presents information about Bank's exposure to and its management and control of risks, in particular the
primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from client or counterparty default (note 43.1).

= Market risk is exposure to market variables such as benchmark rates, exchange rates and equity indices (note
43.2).

- Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal prccesses, people and system or
from external events and Shariah non compliance (note 43.3).

- Liquidity risk is the potential loss arising from Bank's inability to mest its obligations when due (note 43.4),

The objective of risk management is to effectively manage uncertainties that arise in the normal course of business
activities. The Bank manages the risk through a framework of risk management, policies and principles,
organizational structures, and risk measurement and monitoring procssses that are closely aligned with the business
activities of the Bank.

Risk management principles
- The Board of Directors (the Board) provides overall risk management supervision. The Board Risk Committee

(BRC) regularly monitors the Bank's risk profile.
-~
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- The Bank has set up objectives and policies to manage the risks that arise in connection with the Bank's
activities. The risk management framework and policies of the Bank are guided by specific objectives to ensure

that comprehensive and adequate risk management policies are established to mitigate the salient risk elements
in the operations of the Bank.

= The establishment of the overall financial risk management objectives is consistent and tandem with the strategy

to create and enhance shareholders value, while guided by a prudent and robust framework of risk management
policies.

- The structure of risk management function is closely aligned with the organizational structure of the Bank.
Risk management organization

The Board through its sub-committee called BRC oversees the overall risk of the Bank. The Risk Management
Department (RMD) is the organizational arm performing the functions of identifying, measuring, monitoring and

controlling the various risk and assists the apex level committee and the various sub-committees in conversion of
policies into action.

The BRC comprises Executive, Directors, Non Executive Directors and the Chief Risk Officer. One of the Non

Executive directors of the Bank chairs the BRC, who is responsible for planning, management and control of the
aforementioned risks of the Bank.

The BRC has delegated some of its tasks of risk management to sub committees which are as follows:

Name of the committees Chaired by

Credit committee Chief Executive Officer
Asset and liability management committee (ALCO) Chief Executive Officer
Audit committee Non executive director

Credit committee is responsible for approving and monitoring all financing transactions and also the overall quality of
the asset portfolio. For this purpose it has formulated credit policy so as to effectively monitor the risk profile of the

Bank's asset portfolio and to ensure strict adherence to the SBP's Prudential Regulations, Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962 and any other regulatory requirement.

ALCO has the responsibility for the formulation of overall strategy and oversight of the assets liability management
function. ALCO monitors the maintenance of liquidity ratios, depositor's concentration both in terms of overall funding

mix and avoidance of reliance on large deposits. The Board have approved a comprehensive liquidity management
palicy.

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee. The Audit Committee works to ensure that the best practices of the
Code of Corporate Governance and other policies and procedures are being complied with.

The Bank's Risk Management, Compliance and Internal Audit and Legal Departments support the risk management
function. The role of the risk management department is to quantify the risk and the quality and integrity of the Bank's
risk-related data, The Compliance Department ensures that all the directives and guidelines issued by SBP are being

complied with in order to mitigate the compliance and operational risks. Internal Audit Department reviews the
compliance of internal control procedures with internal and regulatory standards,

The COVID — 1¢ and the measures to reduce its spread has impacted the economy of Pakistan significantly.
Regulators and governments across the globe have introduced various fiscal and economic stimulus measures to

mitigate its impact. However, the consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic for the global economy and financial
sector in particular are still unpredictable.

The SBP has responded to the crisis and has introduced number of regulatory measures to suppert both banking
industry and its customers in these testing times. These include monetary easing, reduction in capital conservation
buffer by 100 basis points to 1.5 percent, allowing banks to defer borrowers’ principal financing repayments by one
year, relaxing regulatory criteria for restructured/rescheduled financing for borrowers who require relief of principal
repayment exceeding one year and incentive for business to retain workers and employees to prevent layoffs, relaxing
debt burden ratio and time based criteria for Non-Performing Loan classification etc.

COVID-19 will impact banks in Pakistan on a number of fronts including increase in overall credit risk pertaining to the
loans and advances portfolio, reduced fee income due to overall slowdown in economic activity, continuity of business
operations and managing cybersecurity threat as a significant number of the Bank's staff is working from home and an
ever increasing number of customers are being enceuraged to use digital channelsf.

l_/l
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In response to above macro-prudential measures taken by SBP, the Bank effectively managed borrowers’ request for
financial relief while maintaining adequate capital and liquidity buffers,

43.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss to Bank as a result of failure by a client or counterparty to meet its contractual obligations
when due. Exposure to credit risks for the Bank arises primarily from financing and investing activities.

The management of credit risk is govermed by credit policies approved by the Board. The procedures set out the

relevant approval authorities, limit, risks, credit ratings and other matters involved in order to ensure sound credit
granting standards.

The Bank has a well defined credit structure duly approved by the Board under which delegated authorities at various
levels are operating and which critically scrutinize and sanction credit. The emphasis is to provide short to medium
term trade related Islamic financing and related assets to reputable names, which are self liquidating and Shariah
compliant. The risk appraisal system of the Bank has enabled it to build a sound portfolio.

Credit risk management framework forms part of the overall business strategy and credit operations of the Bank. The
principles for credit risk management have been laid down in the Bank's credit risk policy, credit manual and credit

operations procedure manuals. The policy has been developed in accordance with the requirements of the State Bank
of Pakistan and is reviewed and updated (where required) on periodic basis.

The Bank has a rigorous pre-approval evaluation process of credit risk embedded in each credit transactions executed
by the business units. The entire process broad ly encompasses, gathering relevant information on the borrower, credit
investigations and visits, detailed credit appraisal and credit risk assessment and measurement, In addition to
monitoring credit limits specified in the Prudential Regulations of the State Bank of Pakistan, credit limit structure
includes internal limits as established by the senior management and the BOD. Internal limits include limits with
respect to BOD approved risk appetite, Industry/sector, credit approval authority and exposure with financial

institutions. All these limits are monitored on regular basis and exceptions are reported to the relevant authorities for
their timely action where necessary.

Besides managing credit risk at transaction level, the Bank regularly monitors credit risk at portfolio level and ensures
that no undue concentration of risk is present in the overall credit exposure. The Bank has well. established

management information set-up which allows sfficient and effective assessment, monitoring and management of its
credit risk profile in various dimensions.

Provisions are determined in accordance with the requirements of the SBP. The authority to determine provisions and

credit valuation adjustments for impaired claims, vests in Credit Operations Department and is according to the SBP
regulations,

The Bank expects that several borrowers will be severely impacted by this pandemic. Since many of such borrowers
have availed the SBP enabled deferment / restructuring and rescheduling relief, the full potential effect of the
economic stress is difficult to predict given the uncertain economic environment.

The Bank has further strengthened its credit review procedures in the light of COVID-18 and is continuously reviewing
the portfolio, to identify accounts susceptible to higher risk, resulting from the COVID-19 outbreak.

The Risk Management Group (RMG) is regularly conducting detailed analysis on Sectors/Industries and identify the
degree by which the Bank's customers’ businesses have impacted amid COVID-19. Based on the ongoing

assessment of Sectors / Industries concentration limits have been rationalized keeping in view short term and long
term outlook of each sector, s
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Qus from financial institutions

Credit risk by public / private sector

Public/ Governmaont
Private

Ipvestment in debl securities

Crodil risk by industry sector

Agriculture, Forestry, Hunting and Fishing
Mining and Quarrying

Textlle

Chemical and Pharmaceuticals

Coment

o e

Elactronics and elecirical appllances
Fower (electricity), Gas, Waler, Sanitary
Transport, S1orage and Communication
Financial

Ingurance

Federal Govemmen! Securities

Foreign Governmeant Secunties

Others

Credit risk by public / private sector

Public/ Govarnment
Privale

Islamic financing and related assots

Credil risk by Industry sector

Agriculture, Forestry, Hunting and Fishing
Mining and Quarrying

Textlle

Chemical and Pharmaceulicais

Cement

Sugar

Footwear and Lealher garments
Automabile and transporiation equipment
Electronics and electrical appliances
Construction

Power (electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary
Wholesale and Retail Trade
Exporis/imports

Transporl, Storage and Communication
Financial

Insurance

Services

Individuals / stall

Food products and beverages

Others

Credit risk by public / private sector

Publies Govemnment
Private

Page 45 ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

Due from financial Non-performing due from

Institutions (Gross) financial institutions Provision held
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
{Rupees In '000)
2,748,221 14598633 - - - -
2,748,221 14,566,693 - 5 : .
Gross investments Non-performing investments Provision held
2020 018 2020 2019 2020 2019
(Rupees in "000)
61,472 51,788 - - - -
81,492 65,650 34,246 56,663 24,285 37,684
135,862 128,574 125,069 125 060 118,807 118,007
391,633 524 825 87,764 73449 57.507 BO.8AA
114,080 198,833 32,339 187,768 14,837 88,871
76,144 54 678 41,961 41,961 41,961 41.861
60,166 B3 565 47,070 58,549 34,974 38238
343,845 344 988 32,461 32,481 23,178 23,081
3,548,298 4,125 442 318,160 109,960 192,316 125,506
1,727,588 2285273 9,242 9,242 9,242 9,242
52,200 52,200 52,200 52,200 26,154 26,154
50,515,208 15,327,201 . . 2 .
494,442 471,314 . . . .
177,388 176,184 118,605 148 529 89,313 104,231
57,749,804 240 70414 877,417 656,151 832,672 676,520
Gross Investments Nan-performing investments Provision haid
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2010
(Rupees in '000)

53,148,425 18,558,308

4,603,480 5314018 877,117 658 151 632,672 675,528
- _‘_sr,ra'g'!_n,am,ns_ — 877,117 656,151 632,612 675529

Islamic fi Ing and related Non-performing Islamlic financing
assets (Gross) AR Sl Provision held
2020 2018 2020 2018 2020 2019
-—{Rs in '000}
2,287 863 1,881,657 15,864 10,704 7378 4,761
3,817,360 3,080,524 12,202 12,202 12,202 12,202
9,264,305 9,687,300 3,790,086 3,591,000 3,096,027 2,765,931
6,119,080 5,158, 909 517,818 538,112 87,254 315,505
2,228,664 1,763,715 . : . =
4,284,087 1,606,882 323,744 323,744 282,747 274 478
589,506 523,731 64,208 684,481 50,620 50,620
1,321,841 1,333,200 3,500 9,338 - 2,31
2,408,299 2,451 484 ERARCF 292,510 78,102 88,307
1,577 668 1,545 266 371,957 574,121 281538 273197
2,148 402 1,831,268 = - : =
2,484,283 2,724 492 175,292 183,023 80,733 48,220
524,763 BO3 A24 20,482 21,689 20,452 8,209
6,742,857 7,212,736 87,239 141,348 81,014 83,721
92,812 n2.812 89,035 89,035 88,051 84,051
5,088 7,820 - . . B
4,473,408 3,112,582 232,408 60 815 152,469 38,815
23,216,479 18,070,138 657,597 554 474 310,564 242 134
20,837 854 2,501,620 2,137,926 2,045 761 1.217 106 627 409

2,929,083 8,720,297 878,793 731,661 490,428 492,191
W.Sﬂ_hu'f 81,200 324 9,515.008 ﬂiiﬁﬁﬂ e,m,ﬂi 5,678,872
Islamic financing and related Non-performing Islamic financing Provision hetd
assets (Gross) and related assels
2020 2018 2020 2019 2020 2010
Emmmamannenen e | [T R ——

15702,300 11,656,680

81,653,067  £9.623.635 9,512,008 6,280,329 s,;srluz 5,676,672
97,3585, 81,200 324 9,512,008 8,250,328 [] 682 5876
. EES e e

i |




4314

43.1.5

4315 Islamic financing and related assets - Province/Region-wise Disbursement & Utilization
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

Lontingencies and Commitments

2020 2019
Credit risk by industry sector Amount In Rs "000
Agriculture, Forestry, Hunting and Fishing 188,819 316,108
Mining and Quarrying 10,700 356,538
T axtile 1,387,831 1,365,114
Chemical and Pharmaceuticais 2,581,701 5,226 544
Cament 156,228 6,027
Sugar 148,222 783
Footwear and Leather garments 140,652 143,142
Aut fie and transp equipment 491,747 384,748
Electronics and slectrical appliances 1,289,407 094,377
Constructien 939,539 881,031
Power (electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary 2,035,880 1,073,868
Wholesale and Retail Trade 1,262 486 1,494 280
Exports/imporis 166,851 1,230,807
Transport, Slorage and Cormmunication 637,372 140,528
Financial 32,824,755 28,889,157
Services 1,069,221 548,042
Food producls and beverages 2,609,383 249,010
Others 3,517,178

Credit risk by public / private sector

Publiey Government
Private

Concentration of Islamie financing and related assets

The bank top 10 exposures on the basis of total (funded and non-funded exposures) aggregated to Rs 28,777 million (31 December 20

2,735,418
51 L,l—ii.ﬂﬂ 42,635,873

528,353
51,339,457

335,170
42,300,703

51,887 210 42 635873
—_—

8. As 21,121 million) are

as following:
2020 2018
Rupees in "000
Funded 26,456,139 17,228 825
Non Funded 3,320,588 3,892,052
Total Exposure 20,776,737 21,120,877

The sanctioned limits agains! these top 10 exposures aggregaled to Rs 33,840 million (31 December 2019: Rs 28,234 million). The bank's top 10 exposures are

performing in nalure,

2020
Disbur t Utllization
AJK Tncluding

Provinoiagion Pun Sindh FATA Balcchistan __Islamabad ____ Gilgit.

Punjab §3,143,088 53,143,088 - . - . .
Sinedh 58,830,155 -| 59,630,155 . - -
KPK including FATA 443,848 - - 443848 - - -
Balochistan 202,170 . - - 202,170 - .
Islamabad 4,362,544 . - . - 4,362,544 .
AlK including Gilgit-Ballistan - . y - 2 & =
Total 11??51& 53,143,088 53,830,155 443,848 _202.170 4,362,544 =

2019
Disbursements Utilization
ncluding — AJK Including

Provinca/Reglon Punjab Sindh FATA Balochistan __islamabad Gilgit-

Punjab 52,162,818 52,162,818 - = 2 = :
Sindh 36,093,440 - | 38,003,440 = . 2 .
KPK including FATA 280,451 - 260,481 5 -
Bajochistan 64,602 - - 84,802 -~ .
Islamabaa 3,007,868 - - - 3,007,858 -
AJK including Gllgit-Baltistan £,878 o - —— - 5878
Tota! 93,645,106 52 B1 18 481 94,607 3,007 868 5978

Market Risk

Markel risk is the risk that the Bank's earnings or capital, or its ability to mest business objectives, will be adversely affecied by changes in the leve! or voialiity of
markel rates or prices such as profit rates, credil spreads, commeodity prices, equity prices and forelgn exchange rates

The main objective of tha Bank's markel risk management is lo minimize market risk and to facilitale business growih within & controlled and transparent risk
managemerit framework.

Markol risk arise from investment in sukuk, equities and dealing in forelgn exchanga transactions.
Markel risk is baing monitored by ALCO and performs foliowing functions in relation to market risi:
Regular penodic review of markal risk, based on economic review repors.

- Koepimenonmamdumfmmpoﬁmofamk‘lnwsandmmmdﬂddemmm-ﬂmmdemsas, Islamic financing and related
ussets,

= Develop fulure business sirateqy In view of the latest trends / palicy in the market, economic conditions and local reguialory requirements.

- Rmm:mmdioMBmwm‘.mmmnmmgmnmu?
= A,
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Statement of Financial Position split by trading and banking books

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

y 2020 __2019
Banking book Trading book Total Banking book Trading book Total
(Rupees In '000)

Cash and balances with treasury banks 15,773,612 B 18,773,812 26,319,037 - 26,319,937
Balancas with other banks 10,177,098 . 10,177,008 2,850,580 . 2,850,550
Due from financlal institutions 2,748,221 - 2,748,221 14,598,833 - 14,598,833
Investments 58,883,125 864,107 87,117,232 23,508,671 568,214 24,194,885
Islamic financing and ralated assets 90,279,044 - 90,279,044 75,443,712 - 75,443,712
Fixed assats 4,396,282 B 4,198,282 4,868,271 - 4,868,271
Intangible assels 1,329,884 1,329,684 1477211 - 1,477,211,
Deferred tax assels 2,840,784 2,640,784 2,839,139 - 2,838,138
Other assets 8,351,808 - 8,351,698 9,389,908 - 9,380 gas

ﬂgm,yg _‘MWT 102#13‘3‘ 131@82'212 5%214 181 9&;122

Forelgn Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from the fluctuation in the value of financial instruments consequent lo the changes in foreign exchange rates. Objective of foreign
axchange risk management function Is 1o minimize the adverse impact of foreign exchange assets and liabilities mismateh and maximize the eamings. Tha Bank
manages this risk by setting and monitoring dealer, currency, inter exposures, stop loss and counter party limits for on end off balance sheet financial instruments.

2020 e IY.
Foreign Foreign Off-balance Wt Yohaig Forelgn currency Foreign Off-balance Nat forsign
currency currency sheet items currency Aasais currenc dhaet Kume currency
aspets liabllities exposure liabliities exposure
(Rupees In '000) [Rupees In ‘'000)
Pakistan rupee 176,852,211 164,876,498 (716,0485) 11,359,668 149,615, 438 135,452,032 1,545,293 16,708,897
VS Dollar 14,457 144 12,539,500 1,851,945 3,769,589 11,357,258 11,743,351 (342 608) (728,701)
Great Britain pound 708,774 1,345,727 (697,018) (1,338,971) 368,074 1,186,970 (867,822) (1,886,718)
Euro 301,897 735,185 (448,643) (881,911) 282,822 575,420 {324 863) (627, 481)
Arab Emirates Dirham 266,638 228,377 - 38,281 173,577 166,843 - 6,634
Japanese Yen 15,814 8,841 (16,817 (6,444) 13,354 20 - 13,334
Canadian Dollar 8,858 - - 8,858 13,374 - - 13,374
Singapore Dollar 38 38 - . 34 34 - -
Swiss Frank - 2,248 - (2,248) 14,836 - - 14,536
Chinese Yuan 106,148 48,774 25,278 80,883 143,758 125,888 - 17.869
Malaysian Ringit 3 3 - - 3 3 - .
192,813,622 178,784,170 . 13,029,452 181,982 2 148250 682 - 12,731,564
The exposures of the Bank to forelgn axchange risk Is also restricted by the statutory limit on aggregate exposure prescribed by the SBP.
2019
Banking book  Trading book Banking book Trading book
(Rupees In '000)
Impact of 1% change in foreign exchange rates on
- Profit and loss account 8,713 (7.160) (14,486) 15,453
Equlty Position Risk .

Equity position Includes the following:

- Strategic invesiment
- Investment in equities for generating revenue In short term

The equity investments are accounted for and disclosed
Financial Reporling Standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Provision for duminition in the value of securities
loss account.

Impact of 5% change in equity prices on
- Profit and loss account
- Other comprehensive income

Yield / profit rate risk

It includes all material yield risk positions of the Bank taking Into account all re-pricing and maturity data. i

s per the provisions and directives of SBP, SECP and the requirements of approved Internationa!

is made afier considering is made after considering impairment, if any. in their value and charged to the profit and

2 __2019
Banking book  Trading book Banking book Trading book
(Rupees in '000)
4,387 25,894 1.941 27,801

includes current balances and confractual yield rates,

the Bank understands that its Islamic financing and related assets shall be re-priced as per their respective conlracts,

The Bank estimates changes In the economic value of equity due to changes In the yield rates on on-
It also assesses ylald rate risk on samings of the bank by applying upward and downward shocks

Impact of 1% change in profit rates on
- Profit and loss account
- Other comprehensive Income

balance sheel positions by conducting duration gap analysis

2020 2013
Banking book  Trading book Banking book Trading book

(Rupees In '000)

(149,986) 3,350

(268,286) =

VA
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PROFIT / (LOSS) DISTRIBUTION TO DEPOSITOR'S POOL

Page 56

44.1 General remunerative dapositors' pools / IERS pools | Treasury Pools

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

2020 _
Profit | Profit rate and | Mudarib | Percentage of | Profit
—— sharing | welightage share | Mudarib Share | rate | Profit rate retum
BN ek P ratio  |announcement|{Rupees in| transferred | retum distributad

| {average) period ‘000) through Hiba earned
General Poal - PKR Jan to Dec 2020 43% Monthly 2,280,820 17.5% 8.99% 5.9%
General Pool - FCY Jan to Dec 2020 80% Monthly 36,520 12.6% 0.8% 0.2%
Islamic Expert Refinance Pool  Jan to Dec 2020 88% Manthly - - 7.5% 1.9%
Treasury Paol Jen to Dec 2020 62% Variable - - 11.2% 6.6%
Special Depositors’ Pool Jan to Dec 2020 40% Varlable 1,882,892 22.2% 12.0% B.3%

2019
Prefit | Profit rate and | Mudarlb | Percentage of | Profit
i sharing welightage share | Mudarib Share|{ rate | Profit rate retum
- Hools Fetiod ratle  |announcement|(Rupees In| transferrad return distributed

(averaga) period *000) through Hiba | earned
General Pool - PKR Jaen to Dec 2018 42% Monthly 2,854,023 46.0% 10.4% 8.1%
Genaral Pool - FCY Jan to Dec 2018 78% Monthly 87,496 35.2% 1.8% 0.8%
Isiamic Export Refinance Pool  Jan to Dec 2018 80% Monthly - - B0% 1.7%
Treasury Pool Jan to Dac 2018 82% Variable - - 14.8% 9.4%
Special Depositors’ Foal Jan lo Dec 2018 I Veriable 1,270,666 48.2% 14.1% 11.6%

45.

COMPLAINT MANAGEMENT

451 Mechanism of the complaint Management Unit

Tha Bank s2eks to maintzin its reputation as one of the markel players who
alse committed to maintain responsiveness to the needs and
independent Complaint Management Unit (CMU) under Corperale
customers 3¢ per tha Consumer Grievances Hendling Mechanism (CGHM) p

CMU 1s tha respensible unit whose role is to be an elfactive intermediary between the
customer complaints properly responded and answered. The unil's
raat cause of complainis and teking necessary measures lo ensure

concems

belisve in delivering high guality Istamic Banking Services, and
of ils customers. The Bank has a designaled separata and
Cemmunication Department to hendle complaints / grievances of the

olicy issued by SBP. The unit is efficiently perferming its role
and it s totally independent in scrutinizing, investigating and efficient closures of the complaints / queries raised by customets.

customers and the core units of the Bank lo get
core focus is the guick and efficiant resajution of the complaints,
ils nan-recurrence and 1o improve the service guality. The statstical data

analyses

provided by CMU enables the ccncerned depariments / units in impraving performance and provision of qualily service (o the customers.
452 Lodgment of complaints

The compleint ledgment procadure is adequa
Further, details regarding lodgment of a compla

The Bank recaive complaints from foliowing sources:

1) Phone Banking / call centre
2) Lettar / CEQ Office / Drop Box / Email
3} Banking Mohtasib Pakistan / SBP

4) Social Medie/ Websile

During 2020, the Bank received 7,008 compl
follows defined standards, practices and regu

45.3 Steps of complaint resolution ar handling of complaint
Fundamental steps of complaint handling as defined by SBP in BC & CPD Clrcular No. 01 of 2016 being followed in the Bank are as follows:

Acknowledoment of raceipt of complaint.
Investigation end tagging of complzint lo ralevant department/ branches.
Interim updata to customer, if complaint resolution exceads tha defined timelina
Intimation of rasolution of complaint to custemer.
Rool cause analysis cf the complaint
Suggestions for required acticns and its non-recurrence
issuing monthly MIS to all the stakeholders.

45.4 New initiatives

The Bank consistently endeavor la provide superior customer services and In order

initigtives taken by the Bank during 2020.

The Benk has arranged tralning sessions for empowering the fronl end staff to comprehend the concept of Handling Customer's
Comptaints and Grievances.,

tely displayed in &ll our branches ag well as on our Corporale website www.albaraka.com. pk.
int tc Banking Mohtasib Fakistan and Stete Bank of Pakistan are also prominently displayed.

aints through different channels, out of which 88.2% were investigaled end resolved. Tha Bank
atory requirements In resclution of complaints lodged with the Bank,

to give better customers experience, balow are the fow

For the sase of lodgement, Bank has launched a well designed webpege for customers with the advance leatures lo lodge their

complaints/ suggestion/ feedback through our website.
5,.«.
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Page 57 ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Carrasponding figures have been re-arranged and reciassified, wherever necessary, to facilitate comparisans. There wera no significant
raclassifications / restatements during the year.

GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION

Thesa financial statements wera autharized for issue on u l' ”AR nz' by the Board

i

Directors of the Banlk. ;_,4__.
e

v, ¥ I/

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Annaexure - Il
STATEMENT SHOWING CHARITY PAID OF RUPEES 500,000 OR ABOVE DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2020

--—Rupees in thousands--—

31 December |[ 31 December
Names 2020 2019
The Citizens Foundation _ 7,800 -
Alamgir Welfare Trust International 5,000 7,000
Pakistan Red Crescent Soclety 4,500 -
Sundas Foundation 3,600 500
Lahore Businessmen Assoclation For Rehabllitation Of Disabled (Labard) 3,500 2,500
Orange Tree Foundation 2,660 500
Afzaal Memorial Thalassemia Foundation - AMTF 2,500 3,500
indus Hospital 2,500 10,000
Greenewable Solar (Pvt) Limited 2,480 2,620
Al Khidmat Foundation Pakistan 2,000 - -
Shahid Afridi Foundation 1,800 , -
Anjuman Akhwan Us Safa ' 1,675 -
The Hunar Foundation _ 1,600 -
Green Crescent Trust 1 1,380 -
Burn & Children Care Welfare Organization 1,000 >
Prime Minister Covid-1¢ Pandemic Relief Fund 2020 ¥ 782 .
Maulana Shafgat Ali i 524 -
RIZQ i 500 || -
Bint-E-Fatima Old Home Trust _ 500 | 500
Al Mustafa Trust ) '; 500 ' -
Cancer Care Hospilal & Research Center . 500 -
Healthcare And Social Welfare Associatian - HASWA 500 850
Lady Dufferin Hospital 500
Neurology Research & Patient Weifare Fund (National Epilepsy Center) 500 ' 500
Patients Welfare Jinnah Hospital Lahore 500 -
The Cancer Foundation 500 =
Family Educational Services Foundation - Fesf 500 ' 1,000
Pakistan Foundation Fighting Blindness §00 .
Society For Audiological & Developmental Ailments (Seda) 500 . -

=




